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PROCEEDINGS 

CHAIRMAN OSBORN: Good morning. We are running a 

bit late and have another busy morning scheduled, so I think 

we should get underway. 

I am particularly delighted to welcome our first 

witness, Eunice Diaz, for whom there is no introduction 

needed either to the Commission or I think to the audience. 

She is a very important person in having put together our 

entire visit, for which we are quite grateful. 

Eunice, I’11 turn the floor over to you. 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Good morning. 

Thank you, June. I would like to mention something 

that I always mention when I come to Puerto Rico and stay on 

this part of the island, and that is that I think today 

probably I have two uniquenesses, and that is that of the 

fellow Commissioners I come the farthest distance away, from 

Los Angeles, California, and I don’t think that any Commis- 

sioner can look out of the hotel window and see the exact 

place of their birth, in San Juan. 

Having said that, it is always a pleasure to return 

here, particularly on this very important occasion where we 

are accompanied by such distinguished individuals as my 
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friend, Surgeon General Antonia Novello, Dr. Mason and others. 

I would like to take this opportunity to share one 

‘main thought with you today and a few brief recommendations-- 

and I definitely plan, Dave Rogers, to stay within the time 

so you don’t have to say, "Ms. Diaz, would you look at us and 

tell us what you have to say really fast." 

As a matter of background let me remind you that I, 

like Dr. Kenneth Castro said to you yesterday, am a Puerto 

Rican living on the island during the first ten years of the 

HIV epidemic, so I come before you today with an intense 

feeling of emotion, passion, pain and devotion to an issue 

which has been discussed yesterday and which many of you have 

been reading about and preparing for this hearing. 

Little did I realize ten years ago when I first got 

involved in AIDS, long before it was even called an HIV 

epidemic, that Hispanics would be so disproportionately 

impacted by HIV and that among the Hispanic subgroups, Puerto 

Ricans would become the group most severely impacted. 

Approximately three years ago I began to work 

extensively and intensively with others across the Nation to 

identify and bring together interested and involved Latino 

professionals and particularly Puerto Rican professionals who 
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had knowledge and expertise that could be brought together to 

discuss issues related to the rapid progression of HIV among 

Hispanics and Puerto Ricans and to look at alternative 

responses to this epidemic. 

Toward this end we organized a First National 

Conference on Latinos and AIDS in Los Angeles in early 1987, 

with over 100 health professionals participating both from 

the mainland and Puerto Rico, discussing areas such as 

prevention and education, service, organization and delivery 

of care, legal advocacy issues, and the need to communicate 

to our population via the most expeditious manner and the 

most effective strategy. 

Participants worked in multidisciplinary teams for 

two days and developed specific agendas that could be 

responded to at local, regional and Federal levels. Perhaps 

the greatest value of that meeting in Los Angeles three years 

ago, which a number of people in this audience attended--I 

can think of Dave Petty [phonetic] from the University of 

Puerto Rico and also Mr. Donald Babb, president of Fundacion 

SIDA--that perhaps the greatest value of that meeting was the 

| cross-fertilization and sharing of ideas, programs, model 

interventions, and evaluation strategies among us as profes- 
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{sionals, different representatives from agencies, and peers. 

At that time I convened a small group of people, 

primarily Puerto. Rican professionals, both from the island 

and the mainland to discuss the need to engage in a more 

intensive discussion on issues related to HIV in Puerto Rico 

and among Puerto Ricans living on the mainland. With help 

and support of individuals such as Dr. Mason, Dr. Jim Allen 

and Dr. Samuel Metheny, we were able to sponsor and hold a 

think tank for more intensive discussion of those issues in 

August of 1989. 

Our chairman, June Osborn, was able to be with us 

for part of that meeting, and we had the following objectives: 

to better understand the factors contributing to the rapid 

progression of HIV among Puerto Rican populations both on the 

island and the mainland; to provide a forum for the sharing 

of knowledge, expertise and experience in dealing with this 

epidemic; to develop ongoing networks, communications and 

collaborations among the participations, and lastly, to 

explore the need for further collaboration in the development 

of a comprehensive and coordinated system of AIDS care. 

I will not summarize all of the points of that 

forum because I think for the Commissioners those were 
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presented in our briefing packets and I hope for the audience, 

if you don’t have it, "AIDS in Puerto Rico", a report of that 

first think tank, which is very, very well done, and was done 

with the help of the National Council of La Raza, and it 

summarizes what came forth from discussion on that occasion. 

This past August, just a few months ago, found us 

here, celebrating Think Tank No. 2 in Puerto Rico, focusing 

in more detail on care and treatment issues and the organiza- 

tion and delivery of AIDS care both on the island and 

affecting Puerto Rican populations on the mainland. Over 130 

professionals attended and developed a set core of recommenda- 

tions as a result of this experience. From this, we then had 

the driving force to continue further collaboration and 

communication amongst us as professionals. 

But in fact these three experiences--the Latino 

meeting in Los Angeles and the two think tanks--provided for 

us a discussion point for looking forward to what has to be 

developed on behalf of our people. 

I will say that HRSA has been extremely cooperative 

and valuable to us in being able to look to some of these 

issues that relate to care and treatment and provided perhaps 

the most staff support as far as any of the Federal agencies,    
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together with NAPO, the office that Jim Allen heads. 

We wanted to look not only at the impact of this 

epidemic on the island, but very clearly define the inter- 

relationship with this on Puerto Rican populations living on 

the mainland and those who travel back and forth--what we 

have been calling the “air bridge"--whether these people live 

in New York, New Jersey, Connecticut, Florida, or Illinois. 

I respectfully submit that as a result of all those 

experiences I have one major observation and a series of 

recommendations to make to this august body. My observation 

and statement in being able to in some way pool together the 

experiences of all of those forums, and what I have heard 

from many of the distinguished people who have testified 

before you and who are in the audience, is the following. 

The tremendous challenge of AIDS in Puerto Rico can 

never be successfully dealt with without the corresponding 

attention given to how this epidemic is affecting Puerto 

Rican populations on the mainland. It is not possible to 

fully address the AIDS epidemic among Puerto Ricans unless 

the implications of the "air bridge" and circular migration 

patterns and the effect that these have on each other and the 

ease with which people travel are fully and clearly under- 
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stood. 

We have to realize that in fact Puerto Rico is 

unique in this historical pattern of population migrations 

between the island and the United States. By 1970, 1.5 

million Puerto Rican-born residents and their descendants 

were living on the U.S. mainland, then about one-third of the 

total number of Puerto Ricans. 

Also, another thing that has not been discussed 

fully in this hearing so far and I hope may come out today is 

the "coming home” phenomenon, and that may be more pronounced 

and greater here in Puerto Rico than anywhere else in the 

United States. This may be due to many sociological factors 

and individual and family and cultural characteristics. 

The following will represent in a nutshell what I 

offer to you, my fellow Commissioners, from my perspective 

and my work of working within these issues for the last ten 

years. 

I recommend strongly that this Commission urge that 

| Congress direct a study to include a comprehensive view of 

the organization and delivery of health care in Puerto Rico 

in light of what we have heard, with the unique and current 

situation and the impact of the HIV epidemic, as well as 
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looking into the health status of major Puerto Rican popula- 

tions who migrate back and forth between the island and the 

mainland. 

The uniqueness of the political status of Puerto 

Rico, the patterns of migration of our people and the rapid 

spread in modes of transmission of HIV and the ability and 

limitations of Federal, State and local health care systems to 

respond to this serious problem demand that this special 

attention be given at this time. 

I would say that is the one cardinal recommendation 

I have for this body, and I hope that we will consider it 

seriously. There is a precedent for such. In 1982, Senator 

Daniel Inouye from Hawaii suggested that the same type of 

study be done for the Hawaiian Islands and later presented a 

total report to the Congress, which was then dealt with in 

pieces in looking at how those islands may be helped in terms 

of the AIDS crisis in the health care system. 

I would say that based on that precedent we can at 

this time consider asking that some specific attention be 

given to the health care system, with particular emphasis on 

how this epidemic will impact our total health care delivery. 

My further recommendations are that there needs to 
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be developed a clear statement by the Government of Puerto 

Rico of what exactly is required or desired in terms of 

Federal technical assistance. We heard a lot of differing 

opinions yesterday, and that is healthy, but I submit to you 

that this may mean a different kind of assistance, packaged 

in a different way, different individuals assisting, and 

perhaps it might be that we need more in vivo assistance, or 

even some form of looking at ways in which telephone com- 

munications between several agencies and the island of Puerto 

Rico and the health care delivery system here can be on a 

regular basis communicating with each other. 

The third recommendation is that we need to 

continue toward a broadening agenda of inclusion and involve- 

ment and collaboration, a true partnership with churches, 

private sector, pharmaceutical companies, voluntary organiza-~ 

tions, and most of all, the community-based effort. It is 

urgent that the community-based organizations and response be 

an integral part and an important voice through planning and 

implementing any system of AIDS delivery care on this island. 

My next recommendation deals with developing 

Supportive efforts from this Commission that will enhance the 

continued dialogue between island and mainland professionals, 
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peers, organizations and agencies. 

The fifth recommendation is that I feel there needs 

to be a prioritization of the development of a pilot system 

of case management linking the island and the mainland and 

certain Northeast cities to emphasize the continuity of care 

and appropriate patient and family and significant other 

follow-up and referral. 

Lastly--and I give this perhaps the utmost priority- 

-I think that at this time we need to devote on this island 

and with the help of friends on the mainland the highest 

priority to developing the infrastructure that will be needed 

immediately to have Puerto Rico become competitively eligible 

for as much of the Ryan White moneys as can be available to 

this island. 

It is my sincere recommendation to the various 

entities involved on this island, and a plea to you, that a 

clear demonstration to ourselves and others of new, creative 

and truly collaborative efforts that perhaps have never been 

tried before need to proceed in good faith at this critical 

time and that that can be far more productive and of most 

benefit to those for whom the legislation is designed if we 

can perhaps bring this to a table, negotiate in good faith, 
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and develop it for the benefit of the people of Puerto Rico. 

I am proud to be a partner with you in these 

efforts, and with my help and interest in what is going on 

here in Puerto Rico and among Puerto Rican populations in the 

| mainland, I share with you the feeling that I know we can do 

it on this island. We have faced adversity, and we have 

faced problems with dignity, respect and tremendous valor. 

We are a people of pride. We need this Commission’s help. 

We need the help of Congress. We absolutely plead with you at 

this time that every effort be made to bring a sense of unity 

and devotion to the task at hand. 

Let us keep in mind that we are fighting a major 

enemy, and that is the virus, not each other. I thank each 

one of you and hope that perhaps through these hearings we 

have served some purpose in voicing some of the things that 

perhaps we believe in so strongly and that I think this 

Commission in coming here has been able to bring together in 

a forum of helping us to look at a way of inspired efforts, 

continued support, and continuing involvement in this 

epidemic. 

Thank you. 

[Applause. ] 
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CHAIRMAN OSBORN: Thank you very much, Eunice. 

Does anyone have questions for Eunice? Dave? 

VICE-CHAIRMAN ROGERS: Ms. Diaz, yesterday I said 

to a fine woman in front of us that I appreciated her 

passion. I wish there were more people of passion, and you 

have just stated eloquently some of the problems, and it has 

been a privilege to hear you. 

Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Thank you very much. 

CHAIRMAN OSBORN: Our next panel will deal with the 

topic of human and social services. We invite you to the 

table. 

Thank you for joining us this morning, and I'll ask 

you to proceed in the order that you have agreed to go, and 

introduce yourselves as you go. Thank you.. 

DR. ALTIERI: Good morning. I am Dr. Altieri, from 

the Department of Social Services of Puerto Rico was created 

by Act 161 of June 30th, 1968. Its objective is the strengt- 

hening, development and protection of the Puerto Rican family 

so it might reach its maximum integration and participation 

in all social and economic processes. 

The Department of Social Services performs its 
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responsibilities through the following programs: Family 

Services, which includes services to families with children; 

Public Assistance, which includes nutrition and economic 

assistance; Vocational Rehabilitation; Child Support Enforce- 

ment; Disability Determination; Economic and Social Rehabili- 

tation for Families in Extreme Poverty, and Residential 

Facilities for Children. 

The agency has a nondiscriminatory policy and 

provides services to all children, adults and elderly 

citizens and families that because of economic, social, 

physical or mental reasons need assistance to be able to 

participate fully in the economic and social progress of our 

island. 

Over 1,600,000 Puerto Ricans were served by the 

Department during last fiscal year. 

In the fight against AIDS, the Department of Social 

Services serves aS a support agency to those agencies like 

the Department of Health whose primary responsibility is to 

provide direct medical treatment to patients with AIDS. All 

services offered by the Department of Social Services are 

available to persons with HIV or AIDS. 

Services to children. For those children with AIDS 
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whose parents are not capable of caring for them, the agency 

provides foster care. This is considered the best alternative 

since it allows a child to satisfy his emotional and effective 

needs in a warm home environment. Twenty children last year 

received specialized _c in foster homes. For the foster 

parents of these children, the services of a homemaker 

  

a 

  

several days a week are available to ease up the burden that 

the care of these children can cause_~ 

Eleven children could not be placed in foster homes 

so the Department contracted the services of Proyecto Amore, 

a private sector for the care of children with AIDS. This 

shelter is the closest there is to foster home care. Over 

$117,000 was expended during the past fiscal year for the 

purchase of these services. 

In addition, all day care centers administered by 

the Department of Social Services are open to children with 

HIV or AIDS. 

Services to adults and families. Foster care 

services are also available for adult patients. Last year, 

only one adult with AIDS was placed in a foster home. 
s 
  

  ie, 

Recently, the Department entered into an agreement with the 

AIDS Central Office of the Puerto Rico Department of Health 
Co aig 
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to (0 provide home care services to terminal patients receiving 

‘medical treatment at hone. These patients have no family, or 

their family is incapable of providing for them. The 

homemakers will provide various services including prepara- 

tion of meals, maintaining the area clean, shopping for 

groceries, among other things. 

This project will begin with 100 homemakers 

throughout the Department of Social Services’ ten regions. 

In addition, patients with AIDS can benefit from 

the Department’s public assistance program, which includes 

economic and nutritional assistance. They can also benefit 

from the emergency assistance fund to cover such things as 

medicines and laboratory test expenses. 

The services of the vocational rehabilitation 

program are also available to persons with HIV or AIDS. This 

program can provide specialized medical and rehabilitative 

treatment, but most of all it can make the patient feel 

productive when placed in school or a job or a business of 

his or her own. This not only helps with the emotional 

aspect, but also economically, since the patient will be able 

to support himself as long as he or she feels strong enough 

to continue with their activities. 
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To help the homeless with AIDS, the Department of 
    vcr 

rey 

Social Services participates in an interagency committee that 
  

  

—— 
provides funding and technieal-assistanceto Hogar Crea las 
Spee a= 

re 

Americas, a shelter for homeless people with AIDS. Also the 

  

  

Department provides support services to this shelter, 

Pla aa 
  

  

including social work intervention, clothing, articles of 

t 

personal hygiene and recreational activities, among others. 
fr 7 i 

  

The Department of Social Services will continue 

with its nondiscrimination policy so that all its support 

services can reach all those in need. We are strongly 

committed to the fight against AIDS and will remain so. 

Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN OSBORN: Thank you very much. I think 

we'll hold questions until we have heard a chance to hear 

from everybody on the panel, and that will give us a chance 

|to interact. We appreciate your testimony. 

DR. NUNEZ-LOPEZ: Good morning, Commissioners, 

Commission President, honorable Antonia Novello, fellow 

health workers here today, persons with AIDS and HIV, and all 

other persons interested in this public health problem, this 

serious public health problem. 

I have given a copy of my formal presentation   
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written in English to the Commissioners, so I will ask for 

the opportunity to do my ten minutes of talking in Spanish. 

I think it would be more effective and efficient if I do 

that, and I appreciate the opportunity to speak in Spanish. 

{Interpreted from Spanish]: Good morning. I am 

Jose Antonio Nunez-Lopez, Assistant Secretary for Mental 

Health in Puerto Rico. 

I want to summarize my presentation of ten minutes. 

It can be summarized in ten minutes by talking about our 

responsibility for mental health in Puerto Rico, our limita- 

tions to fill this public need. I think we need to comply 

with new needs. And I do not know much about AIDS, but with 

your visit here, I have realized that this problem is very 

serious, and as public servants we need compassion and 

involvement. We must first learn the seriousness of the 

problem. 

I appreciate your inviting me here today because I 

have been able to recognize the seriousness of the problem. 

What have we done up to now to seek help to face this new 

challenge of making the services available to people with 

AIDS in Puerto Rico--mental health services? The Assistant 

Secretary for Mental Health has responsibility to offer 
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services to any patient that requires these services, but 

mainly indigent people. 

We have 55,000 patients. This is 15 percent of 

600,000 people who need services. These services are offered 

through three State hospitals with 600 beds. We have 12 

Community Mental Health Centers throughout Puerto Rico, and 

we have 1,000 rehabilitation spaces in the community. We 

have 3,400 employees. We have a budget of $74 million, which 

is $3 million less than what we need to continue the same 

services. 

As Mental Health Assistant Secretary, I devoted 

about 60 percent of my time in the last five months to the 

two Federal cases that we have. One of them is the Navarro 

case and another case is the Feliciano case, which requires 

helping 10,000 prisoners in the correctional system of Puerto 

Rico. Out of these convicts, we have made evaluations for 

mental needs and services, and 60 of these 10,000 inmates 

need services. 

I have been in service in the Assistant Secretary's 

office for five months, and I found that the Secretariat has 

had five administrators in the last five years. At present, 

we have been five months without being able to recruit an 
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administrator. For three years, there was no personnel 

chief. We don’t have a person for the planning work, we 

don’t have an epidemiologist, we do not have a system for 

management information, and in the last three months we have 

tried to solve these main problems. 

What is the system that we have available for 

services? Well, in the Mental Health Centers throughout the 

island, there is difficulty to give services because of 

scarce resources. They don’t have psychiatrists in some 

places. Today I had to cancel a visit to Caguas where I was 

going to interview a psychiatrist who was going to offer 

services in that area. In some places, we don’t have 

psychologists or social workers, and in many cases, it is two 

(to three months waiting. 

We must implement Public Law 99-660. We are the 

poorest State, and last year because we didn’t have the 

technical assistance, the plan was not approved, and we were 

penalized with a $14,000 fine. 

Furthermore, we have had to pay a $70,000 fine in 

the case of Navarro Ayala in the psychiatric hospital, and we 
  

are expecting some fines in the case of Morales Feliciano. 

What are we offering to the HIV-positive or AIDS 
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patients? At present the only thing we can offer to any new 

patient who has a mental dysfunction is they would have to go 

into the Community Mental Health Center system with the 

limitations that we have--we do not have help in the psychia- 

tric hospitals to treat people with AIDS. 

What do we need in order to assume this respon- 

sibility, which is not only serious, but is a great burden. 

Dr. Rullan told me that _ in Puerto Rico in three more years 
Sees ~ —_ —y ee 

there will be 30,000 people with AIDS, which is a tremendously 
< * a 

= => 

  

high proportion. These people will be suffering mental 
oa 

  

What can we do to assume new responsibilities? We 
Cc,   

need to at least identify and define the problem, what is the 

need for mental health services for these people with AIDS 

and who are HIV-positive. We know they must be very high 

because we are dealing not only with a terminal condition, 

but with people who are being rejected by the community, 

sometimes by the system itself, and sometimes they are even 

self-rejecting. 

I do not know anyone personally, but I know that we 

must have the resources. We must establish a system of 

information to give follow-up to this problem once it has 
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been designed, to manage it according to resources, in 

coordination with the Central AIDS Office. 

We also need a professional who is interested in 

this, who lives this and who feels the problem because it is 

essential to develop this program. This professional must 

have leadership in the field of psychiatry or psychology and 

must be responsible for preparing, coordinating and following 

up the training of our resources so that these patients are 

provided services in a human and efficient manner. This 

person must generate questions that must be answered by the 

information system that we establish in order to evaluate our 

work and to plan for the needs that could be predicted 

through the information system. 

We also need staff to establish quality measures of 

services, to develop protocols for management of patients and 

for specific situations, to monitor difficulties in coordina- 

tion of services with the AIDS Central Office, and to prevent 

problems in the collaborative work. 

We will need staff for the evaluation of the system 

that we are able to establish and to use more efficiently the 

limited resources that we have and also to develop proposals, 

which I know if we involve ourselves, there will be ideas 
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that will help us to clarify the problem and will perhaps 

help us establish a model for better services. 

What have we done up to now to face this challenge? 

In August we talked to the AIDS Central Office and 

we asked to be assigned some resources. We were told that in 

October perhaps they would have an idea of the funds avail- 

able. 

I met two weeks ago with Dr. Rullan and the staff 

of the Psychiatric Hospital in Rio Piedras, which is under 

Federal management, to ask for help in the management of AIDS 

patients in the Psychiatric Hospital. It was very productive. 

We reached some conclusions, and we are working on this 

agreement. 

At that meeting we were told that the person in 

charge of the program could speak with the people in the 

Central Office to see if we could obtain these minimum 

resources, and we are trying to prepare a proposal. We have 

not been able to establish a contact. 

I believe that this summarizes the position of the 

Assistant Secretary’s Office for Mental Health. In Puerto 

Rico, we have a history of many years that the Government 

provides direct services to the people, and for these 
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patients, who are not only indigent--because according to how 

expensive the cost of treatment is, it could go beyond 80 

percent--they may need the development of a system to answer 

their needs, and we feel that we need help to do that. 

Thank you very much. 

[Applause. ] 

CHAIRMAN OSBORN: Thank you very much. 

DR. FERNANDEZ-DUMONT: Thank you very much, members 

of the National Commission on AIDS, distinguished guests, 

ladies and gentlemen. 

My name is Joaquin Fernandez Dumont. Under Dr. 

Johnny V. Rullan and the AIDS Central Office for the Common- 

wealth of Puerto Rico, I am the Coordinator for Inter-Agency 

and Community-Based Organizations Affairs. 

Although prevention and control of HIV infection 

and AIDS are paramount objectives of our organization, it is 

my primary function as a member of the AIDS Central Office 

team to address the roles of the private sector and local 

government agencies in the prevention of AIDS, and treatment 

and hospice administration for HIV-positive and AIDS patients. 

This is an area where in the past, let say up to 

some point in 1989, it appears that we had made limited 
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progress island-wide. 

Before moving ahead, however, I believe it is 

important to mention that it is probably desirable that we do 

not assess CBOs in Puerto Rico utilizing criteria normally 

used in the U.S. mainland. All local CBOs serve a culturally 

homogenous population of Puerto Ricans who have, generally 

speaking, a common, principal characteristic of being part of 

a socioeconomically bypassed population. Within them, there 

are HIV high-risk groups that are found internationally. 

These CBOs, particularly throughout the island, outside the 

metro area, need various types of assistance including in the 

organizational process so that they may request and receive 

adequate assistance, including economic, both Federal and 

from the local government. Perhaps this is the fundamental 

reason for the position I occupy in OCAS. 

From personal initial field contact with various 

CBOs throughout the island, CBOs of proven leadership in the 

area of social and health-related community services, it 

seems that there existed lack of demonstrated awareness of 

the nature and magnitude of the problem within pertinent 

local government agencies. 

As the president of one CBO stated, "the HIV 
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situation was buried dead" in the day-to-day affairs of the 

government. 

. From these talks, some factors bearing on the 

problem arose. It appears no one wanted to accept that AIDS 

was a serious problem in the island. As a result, a lack of 

awareness existed in the Puerto Rican population. 

Effective communication and leadership from 

government agencies, particularly those providing health and 

welfare services, were perceived to be nonexistent. 

Effective networking among CBOs and particularly 
o~ 

- 
    

  

between CBOs and go best. 

  

Some significant CBOs did not perceive the govern- 

  

  

  

ment as a partner or potenti in dealing with the 

problem. a 

And generally speaking, CBOs need government 

assistance in the following and other areas: In the economic 

area, for technical personnel, medical equipment, medicines, 

transportation, burials, et cetera, in the operation and 

Maintenance of a minimum of critically needed hospices, at 

least one per Health Department region; for training of 

community volunteers as HIV educators and members of the 

staff of the CBOs; for transportation; for the production of 
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and distribution of literature; for developing community 

networks of HIV social workers; for nutrition, and for home 

care services. 

Finally, CBOs demand participation in the decision- 

making process. CBOs see effective participation by their 

organizations in the decisionmaking process as a critical 

strategy in the effective undertaking of the problem, 

particularly in partnership with local public services 

departments and other CBOs. 

The question now in front of us is: What action 

have we taken and/or will we be taking to deal with the HIV 

situation, ensuring roles for the public sector. 

The answer to the question is that the AIDS Central 

Office has taken some critical steps during the last several 

months to assure its proper leadership role in promoting and 

facilitating CBO roles in dealing with the problem as 

follows: 1) recently appointing an interagency and community- 

based organizations coordinator; 2) outlining and implementing 

an aggressive plan to promote complementary private sector 

participation and networking directly as a field-based 

operation. The plan was based on a needs assessment survey 

done among HIV-infected individuals during 1990. And 3) 
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establish an island-wide policy under the guidelines of the 

Ryan White Comprehensive AIDS Resources Emergency Act of 1990 

to ensure ample participation for CBOs in the decisionmaking 

process. 

The AIDS Central Office is in the process of 

recommending to the Governor of the Commonwealth of Puerto 

Rico the appointment of a CBO-based AIDS consortia that will 

have the authority to call for proposals for economic or 

other assistance from local CBOs, establish evaluation 

criteria, and evaluate and assign the State-allocated moneys 

to CBOs in an efficient and effective manner. 

We have commenced to develop a CBO database which 

is badly needed. And finally, OCAS has recently established 

a regional network of HIV specialized clinics where the 

technical assistance suggested and required by CBOs, from 

education through HIV testing and counseling to hospitaliza- 

tion and case management are provided in a complementary or 

partnership manner, utilizing the medical psychosocial model. 

Before concluding my presentation, I feel it is 

necessary to highlight the fact that we are aware of shortcom- 

ings in the past, but we look to the future and your delibera- 

tions in assisting us in reaching our goal in prevention of 
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HIV and control of AIDS. 

This concludes my presentation. Thank you very 

much. 

[Applause. } 

CHAIRMAN OSBORN: Thank you very much. 

DR. TORO: Good morning, Dr. Novello, Dr. Osborn, 

members of the National Commission on AIDS. 

Initially, I want to welcome the Mental Health 

Department to the fight against AIDS; and to the Social 

Services Department, I was expecting to see the Secretary-- 

obviously, she might be too busy. 

I would like to make my presentation in Spanish, 

please. 

[Interpreted from Spanish]: My name is Jose Toro. 

I am a clinical psychologist and Executive Director of the 

AIDS Foundation of Puerto Rico. I represent the personnel of 

the offices, a large group of volunteers who generously give 

their time to contribute to this effort, and more than 900 

people with AIDS who at one time or another in the last three 

years have received services from our organization. 

The AIDS Foundation is a community office initiated 

in 1983 to offer support and education to persons infected by 
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the HIV virus, their families, and significant others. Since 

that time, from a group of just volunteers, we have 12 

employees, more than 80 volunteers, and 10 programs in 

progress. 

We have a support group for emotional problems, 

case management, direct services, a prevention program for 

the gay community, services to children with HIV, support 

groups, a home for homeless people, a program for research 

and experimental treatment, and a series of publications and 

pamphlets which are distributed throughout the community. 

In the year 1989, the Foundation offered $38,000 

for emergency aid. This year, in September of 1990, we have 

offered $33,400, a total of 487 active clients. 

This aid is directed for medication, transportation, 

housing and medical equipment at home. We also provide loans 

for [inaudible] so that the people can receive the treatment, 

aerosolized pentamidine, at home, for those patients who can 

pay when they get raises or who are able to obtain this 

medication at a low cost. In direct help, we also provide 

things such as items that are donated by the community. 

During the year 1989, the volunteers contributed a 

total of 11,217 hours of service which represented the 
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equivalent of $139,000, 35 percent of the total budget of the 

agency for that year. This data was provided in the Sixth 

International Conference on AIDS in the summer of this year. 

The sources for funds for the Foundation come from 

the community. We have fund gatherings, and we have other 

financing contributors, the CDC, the [inaudible] Institute. 

In spite of a limited budget of $340,000 for this year, the 

Foundation has made a tremendous effort to offer as many 

services as possible. 

There are many calls that we have for help and for 

information, for pamphlets, educational seminars, workshops; 

we are asked to form parts of different committees and to 

offer our views in different professional fora. We accept 

referrals from different government agencies of private 

professionals and family members and others who receive 

services. 

However, notwithstanding how much we have received, 

we always have more to do. There is always something left to 

be done. | 

There is need for the community with AIDS to join 

efforts to surpass our needs with our limited resources. 

There are many areas that require attention in Puerto Rico, 
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and the way in which we approach these areas will determine 

the efficiency and the rapidity with which we can fight this 

epidemic. This will be the moment in which we will be able 

to develop new strategies directed toward eradicating the 

pain of an entire community that has lost and is losing its 

best resources--the young people. 

In Puerto Rico, we have conducted studies of 

seroprevalence that will give us the level of dissemination 

of HIV in our community. We know that the number of reported 

cases are only the tip of the iceberg. We know that in the 

next few years, the development of HIV in Puerto Rico may be 

terrific and will create a total collapse of government and 

private services. The cost of primary services and hospital- 

ization will make these services prohibitive for the majority 

of the population. 

In the absence of a vaccine, and if it is not 

available to the entire population, we only have prevention 

as a tool. Efforts must be directed in this direction. Up 

until now, a majority of the efforts have been directed 

toward development of clinical tests, and we are opening the 

door for the population to have this testing. 

In a local town, they called the Mayor of San Juan 

  

   



  

ah 

MILLER REPORTING CO., INC. 

$07 C Sureet, NE. 

Washington, D.C. 20002 

(202) 546-6666     

  

36 

so that they would study the constitutional implications of 

conducting nationwide testing. Apparently, testing is used 

as a prevention tool. New campaigns that offer alternatives, 

the use of condoms and the prevention campaign must be 

directed to young people, in massive campaigns where they 

don’t cause fear and repression, but to invite the young 

people to develop skills to make their own decisions and 

select that prevention method that satisfies their needs. 

We also need aggressive campaigns directed to 

specific populations where we know that the national conferen- 

ces do not reach them. People in the community must serve as 

guides to develop these campaigns--people of the drug using 

community and the sexual community, and young people must 

participate and direct these campaigns for the particular 

populations. 

In the area of services, the early detection of the 

disease makes no sense if we don’t have access to treatment. 

Lack of access, limited to antiviral medication for oppor- 

tunistic disease in Puerto Rico makes this most difficult. 

We do not have in the Health Department at this time a center 

for management of aerosolized pentamidine. The AZT distribu- 

tion is very limited, and the interventions recommended, such 
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as the common interventions, become a major task. To place a 

single hidden demonstration of [inaudible] for prevention of 

blindness for the [inaudible] becomes a serious problem. The 

medical staff are reluctant to perform surgery on HIV- 

positive patients. 

Recently, private laboratories in the city have 

refused to give blood tests to a patient who was HIV-positive. 

The lack of knowledge by professionals in health 

services in Puerto Rico is not sufficient to modify their 

attitude toward infected patients. 

We could spend hours here if we were to tell you 
ae 

the problems that these AIDS patients in Puerto Rico have to 
a eer 

Suifer in relation to services. Nothing would be new to you; 
ee 

I am sure that_in prior situations or in other places, you 

probably have_ heard e. 

_HIV has impacted all people--from prejudice and 
eet 

rejection to the most incredible situations, such as finding 
i ee 

people dead in their apartments because of lack of resources 

for food, housing—and -mediecet-semvices. It is appalling. 

I am convinced that you have seen many cases like 

  

this in other places. The difference in Puerto Rico is that 

we have refused to acknowledge and have refused the help of   
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the community in this process. The government feels that it 

is their sole responsibility to offer services, and they 

refuse to receive the aid from the community in areas of 

services, prevention and treatment. 

In the last three years, leaders of community 

agencies in Puerto Rico have met on many occasions with 

government agencies, without being able to obtain any 

results. However, the community requires and demands 

participation in the decisionmaking for the local and Federal 

funds in the prevention areas and treatment areas. Community- 

based organizations do not feel that we are in competition 

with the government agencies; we feel that we are a complement 

to the services the government offers. The only difference 

is the little sense of urgency that the Federal or government 

agencies show. 

Probably in these two days you will hear testimony 

which is contradictory from AIDS patients and government and 

state representatives. We will testify as to the lack of 

adequate services, about the magnitude of the social and 

financial impact on HIV patients in Puerto Rico, on our 

women, our children, and our young people, drug users. The 

representatives of the government agencies will testify about 

  

   



ah 

MILLER REPORTING CO., INC. 

$07 C Street, NE 

Washington, D.C. 20002 

(202) 546-6666     

plans-- 

VICE-CHAIRMAN ROGERS: Dr. Toro, let me alert you 

that your time is coming to a close, so if you could just 

give us your main points in conclusion. 

DR. TORO: --with these claims and promises, people 

are dying. Thousands of people are afflicted with AIDS in 

Puerto Rico, and this is not solved by political campaigns or 

magic solutions and promises. 

Together with the community and government agencies, 

we will guarantee access for adequate prevention, detoxifica- 

tion programs for drug users, detoxification for women, 

housing, housekeepers, health care at home, access to 

experimental treatment, access to standard treatment such as 

AZT and aerosolized pentamidine, and the guarantee of civil 

rights to infected people. When we have all these, we will 

solve the problem. 

Thank you very much. 

[Applause. ] | 

CHAIRMAN OSBORN: Thank you. 

REVEREND GARCIA [Interpreted from Spanish]: 

Honorable members of the Commission and friends, my name is 

Francisco Garcia. I am a Catholic priest.    
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My profound appreciation for allowing me to share 

my experiences and difficulties, those that have been very 

sour and those that have been hopeful in the fight against 

AIDS. 

I do not believe any sector of our society was 

prepared for the impact of AIDS--not the Department of 

Health, nor the churches, nor families, nor the community. 

It is my conviction that each one of us according 

to our capacity and our creativity can make a difference in 

this situation that AIDS presents in our society. 

If we do not have the cure, we do have the capacity 

to serve and to love. Love cures all--not only those who 

receive it, but those who give it. 

In November 1984, I began to visit patients with 

AIDS in the Regional Hospital of Ponce and share with them 

their anxieties and preoccupations. 

After three years, in March 1988, I took the 

initiative to respond to several desperate patients who were 

discharged with no place to go. I took them to the parish 

and prepared the parish hall to accommodate them and so began 

a hospice. In promises, we are richer than the Rockefellers, 

but the truth is another thing.     
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I organized volunteer groups to treat the patients   
and to nourish them on a daily basis. At Albergue La 

Providencia in Adjuntas, people visited us and gave us 

services and donated furniture. Radio and the press visited 

us, and television, and as soon as there was knowledge, calls 

from all over the island were received to include patients. 

In 1989, I was confronted by my superiors that I 

had to select between the parish and the patients, and I 

opted for the patients and resigned as the parish priest. 

They gave me permission to dedicate myself full-time, and I 

transferred to Ponce. 

Because of lack of education and knowledge of AIDS 
woo ee ee See 

  

  

in some of the community sectors and, sadly, professionally, 
eS Lae 4 

I have had to confront the rejection in use of ambulances to 
_ 

transport AIDS patients. Because of the many cases of this. 
ne 

sad experience, I added a siren to my car, and I transport 
te = 

(I 

patients myself to the hospital or to their homes. 

  

  

      

  

Equally, many funeral homes profit because of the 
eee 

people without resources. A. 

    

pain of riend build       

coffins, and another takes the dead to the municipal cemetery       | where we have been given a small plot to bury the dead. 
  ae   

Also, with the Department of Prisons, I have been 
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able to get for the terminal patients that we may assist them 

in the hospice with the dignity they so deserve. 

We visit patients in their homes daily, and we try 

to make easier their pain, not only to them, but also to 

their relatives; counseling the families, counseling the 

communities and schools; giving short speeches, educational 

lectures on prevention through education. 

Churches, community entities and religious entities 

join efforts and give us support. We have had activities to 

gather funds--they give us pajamas, towels, sheets, nourish- 

ment, et cetera. 

We thank the Department of Health, not only to the 

past Secretary Enrique Mendez but the Acting Secretary, Dr. 

Soler-Zapata, and the Health Director in this town, Dr. 

Giordano San Antonio [phonetic], and the Ponce Hospital 

Administrator, who in February of this year gave us the 

facilities of the former health unit in the Regional Hospital 

in Ponce for the hospice, La Providencia, that will serve the 

15 towns that are part of the southern area. And according 

to the November statistics, more than 1,000 cases have been 

reported. 

I appreciate the Social Services Department for the     
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economic assistance through HUD funds for the remodelling and 

repair of the physical plant that we have achieved. 

At the present time, we trust the services of Dr. 

Rullan in the clinics, treatment, medication and professional 

assistance that will commence to give services in new 

facilities in the Regional Hospital in Ponce and of which the 

hospice will benefit. 

At this time, we need economic assistance in order 

to pay for the nurses and the personnel to be available 24 

hours a day in the hospice and, at the same time, for the 

cost of medication. 

There is one historical reality with respect to 

AIDS in Puerto Rico, and that is that the more or less that 

we have toward our brethren has been through the initiative 

of people, individuals or groups of citizens or religious 

entities, and these have put pressure on the government that 

not only is a fighting struggle, but also for services. 

Thank God, the government seems to be aware of the reality, 

and the moment is here when we have to join efforts and good 

motives and desires. 

The government without the contribution of the 

community cannot do it, and the community without the help of 
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the government cannot go anywhere. 

In the desire to serve not only on the part of the 

government, but also on the part of groups and entities, 

there are tensions and struggles and differences. I do not 

think we should lose the vision and the perspective that 

there are some brothers and sisters who are suffering and who 

are waiting for our assistance. 

I trust the honorable Commission will give us the 

support to give collective services to our patients and a good 

educational campaign. Talent, volunteers, creativity, hands- 

-all of that, we have in Puerto Rico. I hope this Commission 

will channel the resources, the means, the economic resources, 

and that these will be distributed equitably according to 

services and programs not only of the government, but also of 

the groups that we have given of ourselves to help, with 

dignity and heart, our brothers and sisters with AIDS. 

Sadly, in Puerto Rico everything is done within 

politics. Proof of this is the money that has been con- 

tributed for Hugo, the last hurricane, that still has not 

reached its destiny, and there are still families waiting for 

these funds. 

Humbly, I suggest that we have an integral committee 

eh      
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of government representatives and community representatives 

for the equitable distribution and supervision of the use of 

the funds, in that way to avoid any controversy, political 

controversy, favoritism, so that the funds will go to the 

purposes for which they have been contributed. 

I have witnessed the talent and the professionalism 

land the interest and the preoccupation and nobility and 

integrity which are characteristics of the people of Puerto 

Rico. 

Again, my respect and appreciation to all of you. 

God bless you all. 

fApplause. J 

CHAIRMAN OSBORN: Thank you, Reverend Garcia. It 

is a privilege to know of your work. We appreciate it. 

What we will do now is take some time for questions 

of the group that we have heard from so far, after which 

there will be a family joining us to present some testimony. 

In anticipation of that let me ask that no photographs be 

taken in or outside of the hearing room in that context. 

And as a technical note, I want to remind people 

that there are translation services available if they desire 

them. 
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With that introductory comment, are there questions? 

Larry Kessler, please. 

COMMISSIONER KESSLER: This question is for Dr. 

Dumont. 

Perhaps you can help me understand. You used a 

phrase that I have heard several times now in the last two 

days that I don’t quite understand. You said that the 

criteria for the local community-based organizations should 

not be held up against the criteria of CBOs in the States, on 

the mainland. And it has been said that way, various 

variations on that theme. Could you explain what you mean by 

that? 

MR. FERNANDEZ: Yes. There is not a definite line 

in this statement that I have made, but it appears when one 

talks with people who are doing most of their work in the 

States that when they talk about CBOs, you get the impression 

that they might be thinking of a definition that includes 

minority groups such as are defined in the States. 

In Puerto Rico, we could speak of a minority group 

in terms of those definitions if we consider the entire 

island to be a minority group--in other words, we are a 

homogenous population, homogenous in terms of culture. We do 
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|have a common denominator which is that most of the people 

who are having the worst part of this problem are people who 

are socioeconomically bypassed, and with all the things that 

are involved in that definition. 

COMMISSIONER KESSLER: I thank you for that 

clarification, and I would like to issue an invitation to you 

particularly because of your role, working with CBOs--and the 

Commission office I am sure will be able to help you--if you 

can find the money and the time, I would love to see you come 

to the States to look at several models there that I think 

you will find invaluable in terms of the partnership that can 

exist and that does exist between CBOs, the Health Depart- 

ments, the States, the cities, and the business and corporate 

community, and that when that partnership is developed and 

enhanced by adequate funds and so on, and all the human 

resources that volunteers provide, et cetera, you can build 

an incredible network of services. Should you desire that 

help, technical assistance, whatever, the Commission can 

help, and individuals here on the panel will be happy to help 

you. 

I would love to see a stronger level of participa- 

tion--not just the CBOs seeing the government as a partner, 
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but the government seeing the CBOs as a partner as well-- 

because then I think you will overcome some of the problems 

we have been hearing about, or at least make progress--I am 

not sure you will overcome them, but you will make some 

substantial progress that will benefit people with AIDS 

tremendously. 

MR. FERNANDEZ: Definitely. I think there is a 

| management problem to this thing. In other words, we have a 

problem but there is a way that we must design to approach 

and resolve the problem, and I think that networking and CBO 

involvement, government involvement, leadership is the 

answer. I’d like to accept your invitation. 

COMMISSIONER KESSLER: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN OSBORN: Eunice? 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ: I have a question for Father 

Francisco and another for Joe Toro. 

Father, do you think that it is important that the 

kind of involvement you have within the church in some way be 

translated to other religious denominations and affiliations, 

and what might be some of the barriers to doing that, just 

very quickly? 

REVEREND FRANCISCO [Interpreted from Spanish]: My 
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personal experience has been that not only the Catholic 

church but the protestant church, Baptist, Methodist, 

Evangelical, all of us are joining efforts. In El Juntas 

{phonetic}, I had the beautiful experience that pastors and 

reverends from other denominations came and joined efforts. 

My greatest concern is that I feel we have the 

talent and the desire to help, at least when I have gone to 

private and public schools for these conferences, the next 

day they are visiting us at the home, and we are receiving 

articles. But we are limited in the clinical aspects. 

People cooperate with money, but medications are very 

expensive, and this is where we need the financial help to be 

able to pay for the medications. 

In a concrete case, in our home we need nurses 24 

hours a day. But I think that all churches are answering, 

although we can give more. 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Thank you. 

Joe, just a very quick question. I am sure you 

were involved in the previous three years of the HRSA 

demonstration project here in Puerto Rico. I had the 

privilege of being a consultant for a brief time in the 

design of the noble objectives of such a program. A lot of 
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that rested on the collaborative participation of government 

and community-based response in looking at service needs and 

responding to those needs. 

Do you think your organization has learned some 

very key things that you would like to translate? What can 

you think of that now has to be put into the mechanism from 

the CBO response into the planning process and readiness of 

this island for the Ryan White legislation? What would you 

Say are some of the key things that stand out? 

DR. TORO: Within the demonstration projects in 

Puerto Rico, for example, the dynamics of participation 

included the presence of case management that were located in 

different agencies, both government as well as private, which 

facilitated the recognition process and the development of 

services, especially in the surpassing of obstacles. I think 

that the presence of these key staff in the different 

agencies showed that it was possible to have interagency 

cooperation, and also the fact that we had group communication 

and that we were able to surpass the obstacles. 

I think in the process of identification and 

thinking, as in the case of Ryan White, it is important to 

develop a group--which is part of what many people have 
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asked--that includes the participation of different community 

organizations as well as the health departments, both local 

and State, but with the power to make decisions, with the 

power of having influence that is translated into public 

service and public policies. 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Thank you. 

VICE-CHAIRMAN ROGERS: I want to express apprecia- 

tion to all of the speakers for their excellent remarks. I 

would like to direct my question to Dr. Altieri, and I 

apologize if I did not pronounce your name correctly. 7 

About foster care and border babies--in many of our 

mainland communities, particularly those that are heavily 

impacted with AIDS and babies born to mothers with AIDS, we 

have problems with border babies, placing them in the homes. 

If I understood your presentation correctly, you have a 

relatively small number of children that need such placement, 

and you are able to find placement without much difficulty-- 

or did I misunderstand your remarks? 

DR. ALTIERI: We placed 20 children, with some 

difficulties. I can’t say that we don’t have any difficul- 

ties, especially with funding, because we have to pay more 

for these children in foster care, children of AIDS, than we    
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do pay for other, for example, abused children. We do have 

difficulties, and we keep trying. 

We had a campaign last year on radio, TV, and 

newspapers also, asking people to open their homes--literally 

translated, open their homes--for foster children. It was a 

very good campaign, but we couldn't keep it for long because 

we didn’t have enough money for it. 

We keep trying. We are starting a new campaign 

soon. We take care of all the children who are referred to 

us whose parents either died of AIDS, or they cannot take 

care of them. But those are the ones who have been referred 

to us. 

We do understand that the number is going to grow, 

and that is one of our biggest worries. They are going to 

keep coming to the Department, and our resources are less and 

less every year. So that is something we will have to work 

out. 

CHAIRMAN OSBORN: Harlon? 

COMMISSIONER DALTON: My question is also for Dr. 

Altieri. You mentioned that recently you have entered into a 

contract to provide home care services to terminally ill 

patients. My question is whether you have plans to extend     
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home care to other persons living with AIDS, and also how do 

you define persons who are terminal under the current program? 

DR. ALTIERI: Okay. This agreement is in the first 

Stages. We just sat down and agreed as to what the Department 

and the Office for AIDS are going to provide. We are going 

to start as soon as we can. 

We didn’t define terminal; they did. They are 

those patients who have all the symptoms but who can be taken 

care of in their homes; they are bedridden. They are going 

to receive the services of nurses, but they can be at home. 

In case they really need the hospital, they can go back, but 

really, the purpose of this is that those who can be taken 

care of at home do so because then the hospitals will have 

more beds for those who need special care in the hospital. 

I don’t know if I answered your whole question. 

COMMISSIONER DALTON: Briefly, are there any plans 

for extending home care service to persons who are not 

terminal but who can benefit from having care in the home? 

DR. ALTIERI: Yes. That depends on how much 

funding we get. The home care services in the Department of 

Social Services is right now in a very serious crisis. 

Because of shortages in funding, we have to start cutting 
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services of home care. But in this agreement with the 

Central Office for AIDS, we plan to extend the service if we 

have enough funding for it because the Department doesn’t 

have the money for it. 

CHAIRMAN OSBORN: Dr. Novello? 

SURGEON GENERAL NOVELLO [Interpreted from Spanish]: 

I am glad that we have spoken about foster care. I am very 

concerned about foster care. I am concerned because, as you 

stated, in the year 2000 we are going to have 10 million 

orphans throughout the world, and in Puerto Rico we said 

yesterday that we are going to have 125 children with AIDS. 

|The prevention campaign that we have lets people know that 

AIDS in children is not contagious. 

DR. ALTIERI [Interpreted from Spanish]: The 

campaign for us was not for prevention--it was to ask people 

to accept children in their homes. We don’t have enough 

foster homes for children--not just children with AIDS, but 

for all types of children. So we want to inform people that 

children do not transmit AIDS. They are aware of that lack 

of foster homes not just for children for AIDS, but for all 

children, unfortunately. 

SURGEON GENERAL NOVELLO: The program in Puerto 
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Rico is not different from the United States, but we did 

something in the United States through the NIH, the Department 

of Defense, and HRSA in which we used funds--we had a 

training program in which we used members of the community to 

become adoptive parents. And at the same time, regardless of 

whether they are members of this family, you pay them the 

Same as you would pay an outside person. But we have found 

that many of these mothers cannot die in peace because they 

don’t know who is going to take care of their children. When 

they are introduced to the person who is going to take care 

of the child, the peace, the tranquility, the peace of mind 

that you see in their faces is remarkable. 

This is a new program, but it is expanding. You 

must use the community and tell them that children do not 

transmit AIDS, and that these children need homes. But you 

can tell them that they can also be foster parents. Whether 

this exists or not in their community, it will function, and 

I am sure that something similar could be used in Puerto Rico 

at the Federal and State level and at the community level 

with the tremendous emotional capacity that these homes have. 

Mothers refuse to die, and you see the desperation of a 

mother who is dying and knows she is going to leave her     
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children alone. 

DR. ALTIERI {Interpreted from Spanish]: You are 

entirely right, and I am going to transmit that message 

because we can derive great use from this suggestion. Thank 

you. 

SURGEON GENERAL NOVELLO [Interpreted from Spanish]: 

Thank you very much. 

CHAIRMAN OSBORN: Thank you, and let me thank all 

of you on the panel for your important testimony. We 

appreciate the time you have taken to share with us. 

As I have mentioned before, I hope everyone will 

observe our request not to take photographs inside or outside 

of this room as we hear from a family living with HIV. 

[Pause. ] 

MRS. ___—s—sé@L Interpreted from Spanish]: We are a 

family who, sadly, have the AIDS syndrome. We are infected, 

my husband and two of my children and others who are not 

determined yet. 

We are here so that you can ask us the necessary 

questions in order that it be of assistance to all of us and 

to all the other patients. 

We are under the Institute of AIDS, through the 
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Hospice of Amistad and the Pediatric Hospital for my children. 

We are accompanied by our social worker, Ms. Maria Aponti 

{phonetic], and the pediatric social worker, Mr. Rivera, and 

we are available to respond to any questions that you deem 

appropriate. 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ [Interpreted from Spanish]: We 

appreciate all of you, as a family, that you have come here 

to collaborate and participate in this important hearing we 

are having in Puerto Rico. It was our wish to get to know you 

and to know the entirety of your needs and your perspective 

as parents, having children, and being infected by this 

problem. 

I would like to ask the gentleman if he can tell us 

his experience in terms of how you see that it has impacted 

your family and what has been your experience? 

MR. _—sO(Interpreted from Spanish]: Well, before 

anything, good morning to all. My experience on this basis 

is that we have gone through a lot of hard times and many 

problems, and in fact, through the help of God and the help 

of the Institute of AIDS, we have been able to overcome all 

of these problems. 

My experience--well, what can I think when you know     
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that you are going to die? Practically, I am a man of a few 

words; I do not talk a lot. What I hope is, with the help of 

God and with your help, to be able to go ahead. 

That is all I have to say. 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ [Interpreted from Spanish]: 

Could you give us your age and how you were infected, if you 

can say so? 

MR. _—_—sCc [Interpreted from Spanish]: Yes. I am 

25 years old. My wife is 24 years. I have five children-- 

Xavier, my son, is four years old; the oldest is six, and the 

other one is three; and I have two others who are at home, a 

one-year-old, and the other is seven months old. That is my 

family. 

I contracted the virus through drugs. I was an 

addict before, and I had the disgrace of contracting the 

virus through drug addiction, and that is all. 

XAVIER _—_—sés(({Irnterpreeted from Spanish]: Thank you 

very much. 

SURGEON GENERAL NOVELLO [Interpreted from Spanish]: 

A question. How long since you were diagnosed as positive? 

MRS. _—_—sCi[{Interpreted from Spanish]: Could I 

answer because he doesn't have much information. Two years 
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ago. Two years ago the virus was diagnosed. 

SURGEON GENERAL NOVELLO [Interpreted from Spanish]: 

And are any of the children positive? 

MRS. __—sO((Interpreted from Spanish]: We have the 

four-year-old child who is undetermined, but with a very 

positive outlook. He has been the one who has been ill, but 

through prevention, thanks to God, he was admitted into the 

Pediatric Hospital. I was very concerned because--I have to 

say this, I have to say it--the place where we are supposed 

to take the children, when they heard of the condition, the 

doctors would not touch the children for the checkup. I get 

there, and they just ask “What do they have?" If it is a 

cold, I have to tell them. And the fact that they are 

admitted into the Pediatric Hospital whenever I have an 

emergency, in addition to the fact that they are checked 

every month, I have the opportunity of taking them there and 

protecting them against any illness. 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ [Interpreted from Spanish]: Did 

you have any idea that you could be at risk before you went 

to the test? 

MRS. __—_—CsCO [Interpreted from Spanish]: No. You 

always think that that happens to other people, not to you. 
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It is not going to happen to me; that cannot touch us. It 

was very traumatic, at least for me, and also for them when 

we knew. He got ill, and a test was recommended. He did 

submit himself to the test, and it was positive. I was 

pregnant at the time, so it was very difficult to accept it 

because we had many misconceptions about the illness, things 

that you hear in the street, where you shouldn’t hear them. 

But then we were rightly advised in the Institute of AIDS, 

and we were able to digest it and accept that we would have 

to live with it. 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ [Interpreted from Spanish]: What 

type of support do you receive from your respective relatives 

and families? 

MRS. __—_—s [Interpreted from Spanish]: Our 

relatives, at least my family, have been very strong, or my 

mother--my family is my mother. The others, I have not told 

them, because I know there is going to be rejection. They 

are not prepared for this. But my mother is always with us. 

She has been with us, helps us in everything. 

His parents have also accepted it a little more 

apart, but at least they do not reject us; we do not feel the 

rejection. 
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But we have left it there--father, mother--because 

the rest of the family may not understand, not because of us, 

but because we want to avoid the rejection of our children, 

that they will not be allowed to play with the cousins. So 

we decided that no one should know. 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ [Interpreted from Spanish): Are 

the children in school, any of them? 

MRS. _—_—sqm{Interpreted from Spanish}: Yes, three 

of them are in school; two of them are in private school, 

another one is in Head Start. In the school, they are not 

aware of the condition because I am afraid they might be 

thrown out of school. In Head Start, yes, the social workers 

there know of the condition. They recommended that the 

teachers or anyone else in the center should not be told, and 

not even in the records of the child is it written. 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ [Interpreted from Spanish]: Are 

all of those who have been found positive under treatment? 

MRS. _—_—_—séd[L Interpreted from Spanish]: No. It has 

not been necessary to make use of it because in spite of the 

fact that the young boy has been the most impacted, it has 

not been needed to use any special medication, nor my husband 

either, because he has felt symptoms, but it is not so far 
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advanced. 

No, none of us receive anything. On one occasion, 

we thought about AZT for him, but we were told that, no, we 

could hold on because sometimes--how do you say it--it has 

secondary effects, and since he is not that ill, it is best 

that he maintain himself as now. 

So we handle the illness at the moment that it 

comes out. | 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ [Interpreted from Spanish]: The 

two children were born after? 

MRS. _—_—sd[ Interpreted from Spanish}: I was 

pregnant when he was found positive. That has been deter- 

mined, and even with the use of condoms, I became pregnant, 

and this child is negative, but he has had multiple illnesses 

of the condition. Also, he has been included in the Pediatric 

Hospital in order to avoid any risk with him. 

So I was pregnant again after I knew of the 

condition. The truth is that it is a very positive pos- 

sibility. 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ [Interpreted from Spanish]: Can 

you recommend any type of service or social support which is 

needed for a family such as yours in Puerto Rico? 
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MRS. __ [Interpreted from Spanish]: Well, it is 

sad to say that the economic assistance we have is poor. We 

receive a small economic assistance from the Department of 

Social Services, and the food stamps, and really, this is on 

scales that are according to costs that are if you pay rent 

or not. We do not pay rent, so we receive the minimum 

amount, and it is not enough. 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ [Interpreted from Spanish]: How 

much are you getting? 

MRS. _—_——sO@[{ Interpreted from Spanish]: One hundred 

seventy-six dollars per month of economic assistance to pay 

for the needs of the children and us, and also in food 

stamps, we get $170 bimonthly, and there we are able to 

balance the budget--but we have five children, and it is not 

enough--the milk, the Pampers--every month we have to go to 

the social worker to try to get milk and Pampers. And those 

who give once do not want to give twice. So we need support. 

The social worker gives us a great deal of support. 
SSS in, 
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is disabled, and I have to deal with that, but she is not 

well-off economically. 

There is no specific place where you can go for 

assistance. The only place that gives economic assistance is 

the AIDS Foundation, but they do not have enough funds, and 

sometimes they cannot give more because there are many, many 

people, and you have to understand. 

But the money is not enough. If you have to buy 

medication, then it is worse. The money is not enough for 

the basic needs let alone for anything in addition to that. 

With respect to doctors, the Institute of AIDS is 

well-staffed. We have good doctors. Many times we find with 

the medications that sometimes we have to wait a week or two, 

but we get them. 

Although with the Pediatric Hospital, yes, sometimes 

the medications are not available, are very expensive, you 

cannot find them. But sometimes you ask, and they say, "Well, 

you have to wait one month, two months, three months. It is 

being ordered, but I don’t know when it will arrive." 

But at least the place that we go, the medical 

attention is wonderful. 

Another problem that I want to bring before you is    
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the WIC Program. I have problems with the WIC Program. My 

children were removed from this program, and even with that 

program I have to buy additional milk because they drink a 

lot of milk. They were removed from participation in the WIC 

Program. They were asking for a lot of things, and you get 

there, you bring them, and they continue to ask for more and 

more information, and I do not understand why--why? In other 

places, it is not the same. Why does it have to be that way | 

for the WIC Program? They are highest risk, they are anemic 

because they have very low hemoglobin, and I do not understand 

why this has to happen. I don’t know what is happening. 

In housing also, we have problems, many problems. 

If we do not go to the Porta Lesa, the Governor’s house--we 

threatened to move into the Porta Lesa, the Governor’s house. 

The place that we have now--first we were placed ina 

residential project, and we continued to fight. Then we 

found under Title XIII a house, and that is where we are, 

thanks to God. We waited two years. We lived in my parents’ 

house, he lived in his parents’ house and I lived in my 

parents’ house, separated, because we could not be in one 

place since we were so many. And now we have achieved the 

objective of having our own house, and at least we do not 
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bother anyone. But we need a lot of help, too much help. 

There are too many children, not only mine--I know there are 

some others who are worse off than us. 

VICE-CHAIRMAN ROGERS: I would like to ask the 

father whether he has ever had drug treatment services and if 

during that treatment services whether he has been counseled 

about transmitting the AIDS virus to other drug abusers, or 

at any point in his treatment whether he received counseling 

to prevent the spread of the disease to other people. 

MRS. ____.. [Interpreted from Spanish]: I would 

like to-- 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ [Interpreted from Spanish]: He 

is asking whether at any moment you were in treatment for 

drug addiction and whether, within this treatment, you had an 

opportunity to receive, besides counseling with respect to 

AIDS and how it was transmitted, in order not to infect other 

persons? 

MR. _—sCOW{Interpreted from Spanish]: Yes. Thanks 

to the help of Dr. Soler [phonetic] in the AIDS Institute in 

San Juan, I was able to come out of drug addiction. He 

helped me the great deal on the basis of a treatment that I 

followed, and thanks to him, I appreciate his help a great 
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deal. 

What is the other thing he asked? 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ [Interpreted from Spanish]: How 

long ago was the treatment? 

MR. __—_—sCmW({Interpreted from Spanish]: About two 

years treatment. 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ [Interpreted from Spanish): And 

he also wanted to know whether under this treatment you also 

received counseling with respect to the transmission and 

protection in transmitting AIDS. 

MR. _—_—s«s« [Interpreted from Spanish}: Yes. They 

advised me, they counseled me, they explained to me how it 

was transmitted, what to do in order not to infect other 

persons. They explained everything in terms of what I had to | 

do since I had the virus, and I have withdrawn from drug 

addiction. They explained everything. 

MRS. __—_—_—_—sé([{ Interpreted from Spanish): I wanted to 

add something. That is that he was under all programs 

existing in Puerto Rico for drug addiction, and none of the 

programs were effective. There were many, many years where 

we were trying to bring him out of drugs. The only one is 

Dr. Soler, and thanks to God, it has been the Institute of   
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AIDS, completely free of charge, who has given us this 

treatment. This is free of cost, but the help of the 

government for drug addiction here simply does not work--all 

(of them. He tried all of them, from Christian programs, the 

Hogar Crea, DESCA [phonetic], acupuncture--everything, 

everything, everything. Nothing worked; only the aid and 

assistance of this doctor. I would say this treatment was 

sent directly from God, and it is very important. 

VICE-CHAIRMAN ROGERS: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN OSBORN: Thank you very much. We ap- 

preciate hearing from you, and it is very helpful to us. 

Thank you. 

[Pause. ] 

VICE-CHAIRMAN ROGERS: Dr. Osborn has asked me to 

welcome this distinguished group. Let me make one comment 

before you start. I am pleased that all of you were here to 

hear that powerful family testimony. 

You are dealing with some issues that are very 

close to our hearts. I would point out to you that we do 

have your written testimony from each of you. I also know 

how terribly hard all of you have worked on that. You are 

obviously free to read it if you wish, but we do our homework 
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rather carefully, and if you would like to just punch home 

the points that you would most like the Commission to gO away 

‘with so that we can interact with you, the more time we have 

I think in back-and-forth, the more we carry away with us. 

And we will indeed read your testimony, and I know you are 

working across a langauge barrier, too, so that may be hard, 

and if you want to say, "I’d rather read it," fine, but if 

you would just like to punch some of it home, I think you 

will get our full attention. 

Thank you. 

DR. FELICIANO: Good morning, Dr. Osborn, Dr. 

Mason, Dr. Novello, distinguished members of the National 

AIDS Commission. 

Thank you for the privilege and unique opportunity 

to testify at this hearing and to share with your our 

problems in our health system for patients with AIDS and some 

recommendations to address the issue of women with HIV 

infection and AIDS. 

Due to the shortage of time, you have heard a lot 

of statistics, and you have the written document. I want to 

recall only a few things. Twenty-nine percent of the cases 

in Puerto Rico are from the City of San Juan, and from those, 
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66 percent were diagnosed through our health system and 

through the AIDS Institute, and of course, a much higher 

percentage are being treated in our system. 

Twenty percent of the cases diagnosed through the 

AIDS Institute are female. Thirty percent of our cases are 

less than 30 years old, and of the female cases, 45 percent 

are less than 30 years old. Seventy-two percent are related 

to i.v. drug users, and 10.5 percent are heterosexual. Of 

those, 7 percent are females who get their infections through 

heterosexual contact not related to drug addiction. 

In the Sentinel Seroprevalence Study, in the o.b. 

cases we had in 1988-89 1.87 percent positivity and now, in 

1989-90, we have a 3.86 percent positivity. 

You have heard our system. It is through Health 

Alliance that we contracted the AIDS Institute to avoid the 

usual governmental bureaucracy and to assure the best 

utilization of scarce funds and to contract the most efficient 

persons who were really interested to deal with the AIDS 

issue. 

Aware of the importance of prevention, early 

diagnosis and treatment geared to the female population, our 

Department has incorporated several services and programs for    
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them. At each of our nine Diagnostic and Treatment Centers, 

we have readily available confidential, cost-free, voluntary 

HIV testing services. These services are offered by a 

multidisciplinary team. Pre and post counseling is mandatory | 

and represents an educational session for patients. Voluntary 

sexual partner notification and contact tracing activities 

are stimulated. 

We have promoted and enforced these services 

through intensive educational and outreach activities geared 

to adolescents, pregnant women, child-bearing female popula- 

tion, drug addicts and their partners, as well as the general 

population, and we have gone to shooting galleries in order 

to deal closely with these populations. 

Educational material has been prepared, mainly 

geared to children, adolescents and females. Primary 

ambulatory clinics have been organized at six out of the nine 

Diagnostic and Treatment Centers for the follow-up of HIV- 

positive asymptomatic cases. A team is composed of a doctor, 

nurse, counselor and health educator. A specialized referral 

service for the ARC and AIDS cases is localized at the Rio 

Piedras Diagnostic and Treatment Center, all these services 

through the AIDS Institute, offered by a multidisciplinary 
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team. 

Pregnant HIV-positive patients are referred to a 

specialized obstetric clinic, and the Pediatric AIDS Demonstr- 

ation Project at the San Juan Municipal Hospital participates 

in the follow-up of these patients. So all our prenatal HIV- 

positive patients are followed up at the San Juan Municipal 

Hospital in a joint effort between the o.b. department our 

Pediatric AIDS Demonstration Project and the personnel 

assigned through the AIDS Institute of Pediatrics. 

We have started education of our professionals 

including an emphasis on the o.b. and pediatricians at all 

our Diagnostic and Treatment Centers, and very soon we will 

start our primary follow-up pediatric clinics at our CDTs to 

avoid one thing stated by the family--that nobody wants to 

take care of a common cold and a mild fever. So we hope that 

very soon, by January, we will start these clinics. 

A Pediatric AIDS Program is available which offers 

ambulatory and hospitalized care for HIV-positive babies, 

their parents and families. The program is located in the 

Municipal] Hospital. We have a multidisciplinary team, and 

they offer medical service, education, counseling, case 

Management, respite care and drug clinical trials in order to 
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meet emotional, social and physical needs of our patients. 

We have to say that all our pediatric cases that 

merit AZT and gammaglobulin are receiving them through 

clinical trials or through moneys from the AIDS Institute 

program. 

Coordination with the community, including par- 

ticipation in "Pastorale de SIDA", which includes clergymen, 

religious and civic groups, helps us to fill other specific 

needs of our families. 

Family planning services are offered at our 

Diagnostic and Treatment Centers through the UPR Medical 

Science Campus Program. 

Sterilization services are offered at the San Juan 

Municipal Hospital. No abortion services are offered through 

our health system. 

Pretty soon we will be remodelling our ambulatory 

centers which will include aerosolized pentamidine and other 

specific drugs. 

Recommendations. At this point, I want to ack- 

nowledge the support that Federal agencies such as HRSA, CDC, 

and NIDA have offered to the City of San Juan. As past 

Director of the San Juan Health Department, their intervention      
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was crucial to make available Federal funds to our system. 

Every day, the cost of the AIDS epidemic increases. 

We have limited economic resources--we have seen that--to 

deal with the multiple demands for services. For this reason 

it is important to continue an aggressive preventive program 

including specific educational activities geared to help 

young populations to develop healthier life styles and modify 

risky behaviors of the general population. This should 

include, and we are including, safer sex and use of condoms. 

Puerto Rico has a Medicaid cap. This represents a 

great fiscal load to our system with the onset and impact of 

the AIDS epidemic. It is mandatory to analyze alternatives 

to obtain more funds through Medicaid. 

It is unfair to Puerto Ricans, as U.S. citizens, to 

have one of the highest rates of AIDS cases and not have the 

fiscal resources to deal with the other epidemic as other 

States and cities in the mainland. If we are going to be 

fair, we have to recognize the efforts of many Federal 

officials and more specifically the Honorable Louis Sullivan 

for their efforts, and we expect that you will join us as the 

National Commission to be part of this effort. 

Community involvement should be further stimulated 
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other prominent private enterprises that can help us in 

cofinancing the cost of the epidemic, and they have not done 

such. 

The continuation and expansion of services for 

counseling and voluntary, cost-free, confidential HIV testing 

is deemed necessary. We must expand family planning services 

to make them more readily available. Abortion is not a 

solution, since we would probably be killing two healthy 

people for each infected one. 

The establishment of foster homes and day care 

centers for HIV-infected children should be a priority and 

should include services for HIV-negative children of infected 

mothers. Proyecto Amore should serve as an excellent model 

for many others to be established, and it is a pity that 

Proyecto Amore will not participate in this hearing to share 

with you the valuable services they are offering. 

Day care centers to improve the quality of life of 

our patients should be expanded. At present there is only 

one in Puerto Rico, administered by the San Juan AIDS 

Institute. Due to the high percent of i.v. drug use as a 

risk factor in AIDS, expansion of services in prevention,    
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treatment and rehabilitation is a must. 

Recently, a grant to develop a primary care center 

to reach this goal was approved for San Juan City through 

DESCA. This will include transportation. It is planned to 

develop these activities in close coordination with our AIDS 

program and to enforce the rehabilitation of drug addicts, 

the program that we have through the AIDS Institute. 

Emphasis should be made-- 

VICE-CHAIRMAN ROGERS: I should warn you that your 

time has run. Thank you. 

DR. FELICIANO: We have to expand home care, 

skilled nursing. The use of AZT and other specialized drugs 

should be pursued. This should be established as public 

policy and must be a priority in the utilization of any 

additional funds available. 

In a Latin country as ours, where the male supremacy 
rere 

  

has prevailed, and the "macho" figure is predominant, we have 

  

(Seema srntasten ay 

to strongly consider the empowerment of the female to deal 
er Ney 
  

| with her sexual partner, sexual conduct, and her whole life. 
a 

It is an issue of economic survival versus protection, and 
vr 
    

that was more or less that Dr. Novello said. 

  

Women have faced a system designed and run by men      
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for men. Family programs have been successful in Puerto Rico 
  

  

| because of initiative and active involvement of the females. 
  

The same is urgent in the fight against this disease. 

omen have to give away their passiveness and 

assume a leading role at this historical moment in order to 

ensure their futures, save their lives and those most loved 

by them--their children. 

Let us assume positions and develop programs that 

will help them to reach this goal. 

We should remember the importance of the impact of 

women in the whole society and in keeping the integrity of 

our families as principal caregivers. Above all, let us set 

aside our fears, our prejudices. On our small island, let us 

set up the most cost-effective system that will enable and 

warrant good quality of care, in a sensitive way and taking 

into consideration that patients with AIDS are our brothers, 

needing our support, our understanding, our services, but 

above all, our Christian love. 

Thank you. 

(Applause. ] 

VICE-CHAIRMAN ROGERS: Thank you very much, Dr. 

Feliciano.     
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Dr. Zorilla. 

DR. ZORILLA: Good morning. Since you have my 

written comments, I will emphasize the challenges of being a 

woman in the era of AIDS; I will describe some aspects of the 

population that we follow, and I will include our most recent 

ethical dilemma as researchers, the identification of medical 

problems without sufficient access to treatment and services. 

As you can see, these are the most recent Puerto 

Rico mortality statistics. If you exclude accidents and eee 
f 

homicides, AIDS is the leading cause of death in both sexes 

from 20-39 years old in Puerto Rico, and that was three years 
  

ago. 
—_—— 

This is a graph showing the cases of AIDS in Puerto 

Rico by sex, and as you can see, this current year--and that 

is up to this month--females comprised 21 percent of AIDS 

cases in Puerto Rico. 

As you can see, the AIDS cases in females in Puerto 

Rico by risk transmission, we can notice a significant 

increase in transmission by sexual contact, and it has been 

increasing at a rate of 5 percent every two years, so we can 

easily expect that by 1992, heterosexual transmission of AIDS 

will be the leading cause of AIDS in women in Puerto Rico. 
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I will then describe the population that we have 

followed. In 1986 we started a prenatal screening program. 

The HIV test was universally offered to women attending 

i prenatal clinics at five towns in Puerto Rico. Most of them 

got counseling and written consent, and our seroprevalence 

has fluctuated between 1.4 and 1.7 percent. 

The post-test counseling was given at the Medical 

Center, and these women were followed at our clinics. We 

decided to keep these women in the Puerto Rico Medical Center 

because they come from small towns, and if we send the 

reports back to their towns, everybody would know of their 

results. So to ensure confidentiality, we just follow them. 

We continue following them not only through their 

pregnancy but afterwards, because we have some limitations in 

| getting services for them. 

We have also a group of sero-negatives from the 

same population for the basis of comparison. 

As you know, they are young women; most of them 
Coe 

= 

  

live in relationships of stable union, like consensual union 
—_— 

or legal marriages, although most of the positives have 

consensual unions and not legal marriages. This is an 
aa 

example of how asking for-an-HiV+test—for a marriage license 
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would not identify the population at risk. 

Most of these patients acquire the infection 

through the sexual route. Sixty-five percent of them were 

partners of drug users; 6 percent were partners of men who 

were positive but denied drug use; 6 percent had multiple sex 

partners; only 18 percent of them had a history of drug use; 

and 15 percent of them had no risk factors upon interview. 

And this is what worries me about AIDS, heterosexual transmis-| 

sion and women because we don’t know what our partners are 

doing or were doing in the past. 

Talking about sexual partners’ history, most of the 

partners of the HIV-positives gave a history of drug use, and 

not only most of the current partners but also the previous 

partners, as compared to the HIV-negatives. So the risk by 

factors for them were the men whom they chose to live with.. 

  

Regarding sexual practices, we have also found 

high-risk sexual practices among the poor Puerto Rican women, 

and this is a very limited segment of our population. I 

cannot make generalizations for the Puerto Rican population, 

but anal intercourse was significantly hi in the HIV- 

  

positive population, and it is still frequent in the HIV- 

negative population. cha 
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Regarding the clinical status of these women, as 

you can see, 50 percent of them have CD4 levels less than 
  

  TT 

500, which is the crucial level for therapy initiation, and 
—_—— 

about 50 percent of them also have symptoms of AIDS; only 17 
— 

ovudine versus 60 percent 

  

   

of their children, who-are—ree iving zidovudine. 

I just want to finish by saying that it is sad for 

me as a researcher to study these women, study them deeply, 
——   

getting CD4 results, HIV vital cultures, all kinds of 

studies, and then to not have access to the minimum treatment 
&- 

  

that these women deserve. 

  

[Applause. ] 

VICE-CHAIRMAN ROGERS: Thank you very much. 

Dr. Diaz. 

DR. DIAZ: I’d like to add that I am the pediatric 

counterpart of this o.b./pediatric union that has existed at 

the medical school now since 1986. We have followed children 

since early in the epidemic. The program is a tertiary 

hospital-based program, but it has become both primary, 

secondary and tertiary care for the children. So far we have 

seen over 200 children, and I will be very brief. 

I have shared much of my experience at the site 
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visit, and in my written comments there is expansion of 

numbers and so forth; I think we have had lots of statistics. 

But I would like to just basically share what we think is 

important, and above all, access to specific anti-retroviral 

therapy is extremely important. 

We have seen enormous gains in development, in 

weight gain, in children who are started early on in therapy. 

So children, who represent a different group from all the 

others because I think their disease progression is faster, 

need to have identification early as well as access to 

specific therapy early. 

For those children who already have access to 

therapy, it will become important to have alternatives, 

because what we have seen so far is that AZT as the first of 

the analogs that are useful is not a long-term remedy; it is 

not effective perhaps in the long-term. We have seen that 

there will be some immunologic and neurologic deterioration 

despite AZT, perhaps after the first year of use. 

So we need alternatives, and we need to start those 

alternatives available for children who are on AZT now. 

I think that is what I would like to share with you 

and would much welcome questions and expansion of the 
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experience we have had in the program. 

Thank you. 

VICE-CHAIRMAN ROGERS: Thank you very much, Dr. 

Diaz. 

Let’s proceed to Dr. Santiago. 

DR. SANTIAGO: Good morning to the members of the 

Commission. 

I‘d like to point out that I think what is going to 

happen with the AIDS epidemic--I hope what is going to happen 

with the AIDS epidemic--is similar to what has happened in 

the last two or three days in Puerto Rico: rain and rain for 

a couple of days, and a beautiful sunshine today. 

I also want to take a little bit of my time, and I 

will be brief in my statement, to truly appreciate Dr. 

Novello and Eunice Diaz because they are certainly an example 

for the Puerto Rican woman today. 

I will just go over a couple of things that I think 

are important. You have my statement, and you can read it 

later on. 

When we present that we only have 166 Puerto Rican 

children with AIDS, it does not seem to be impressive to 

anyone. It doesn’t seem like a striking statistic. So I'd 
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like to try to compare it so you can see where we are right 

now. 

We are fifth in the number of pediatric AIDS cases 
_——. 

my 

in the Nation. It is mind-boggling to me to see that we are 
= 

  

  

  

an island of about 3.5 million citizens, and we have about 
~- _ 

30-some cases less than the State of California, and we are 

  

that i ow big the pr Ss. 

Not only that, but I’d like to point out a couple 

of other things. One is that 4 percent of our total AIDS 

cases are pediatric AIDS. If you compare that to the Nation, 

actually, right now you hava 1.8 percent jof the total AIDS 

cases. 

The third thing that I want to try to convey to you 

is that the statistics that we have now of 166 patients are 

actually misdiagnoses and a lot of under-reporting that we 

have in the island. It is not until now that we have had 

newborn screening for the entire island, right now; we did 

not used to have that at all. 

The second thing that I’d like to bring up is that 

even in tertiary centers, where Dr. Diaz and Dr. Zorilla are, 

where you do have the testing available, even in those centers 
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what we found was that the data collection system was not 

efficient; therefore, they were unable, even if they knew the 

child had AIDS, to have all the data available to qualify 

within the CDC definition of AIDS. 

Thirdly, in Puerto Rico, none of the educational 

programs for AIDS included a detailed description of pediatric 

AIDS. It was not until the Pediatric AIDS Demonstration 

Project that came over to the island was created that we did 

have a complete program concerning pediatric AIDS. 

What our program has done is enabled professionals 

both in churches, in community organizations, in schools, in 

government agencies, in health care settings to be informed 

and aware about AIDS, and then they can be sources of 

referrals. 

More so, what we try to do is to enable the 

physician to be able to properly identify the pediatric AIDS 

cases and document them, so then they can become a statistic 

within the CDC definition. 

We all know that the main cause of pediatric AIDS 

in children is perinatal transmission. I’d like to point out 

that it may not be very significant, but in the Nation as a 

whole, 80 percent is from perinatal transmission, and in 
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Puerto Rico by the CDC statistics, which I still insist are 

under-reported, it is 90 percent, and we feel very strongly 

that it is higher than this. 

I just want to say a couple more things. Fifty 
ee 

percent of our women with AIDS are i.v. drug users. But the 
coe 

reality that we are seeing now is that most of these children 
  cr 

  

the infection by heterosexual contact and not by i.v. drug 

use. — 

I bring this up to tell you that the increase that 

we have had in the Nation of AIDS caused by heterosexual 

transmission is also true in Puerto Rico. 

In 1983, 19 percent of the women acquired the 

infection by heterosexual contact. Today in 1990, 38 

percent. This is a 100 percent growth rate in seven years. 

Furthermore, the majority of the women who do 

acquire AIDS by heterosexual contact are partners of i.v. 

drug users. And you have already heard how widespread i.v. 

drug use is in the island. 

So obviously, as the amount of women acquiring AIDS 

by heterosexual contact increases, so will the children 

increase. 
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This is what I would like to leave with you today. 

The target of our educational efforts should therefore be 

directed toward the Puerto Rican woman. Although slowly 

changing, our culture traditionally has meant a passive 
% 

posture for the Puerto Rican woman. This posture is dramati- 
wS <= 

    

  

zed by the thousands of women who are victims of domestic 
ey 

  

Same, 

violence in this country. Implicit in all social events in 

Puerto Rico, clearly seen in the established double standard 

of acceptable sexual conduct, and resulting in a few number 

of women in leadership positions in our institutions and in 

our Government, the dilemma of the Puerto Rican woman is more 

complex. Even if well-educated and/or skillful, her success 

in life will always be linked to her success as a wife and as 

a mother. 

Regarding the AIDS crisis, we have many women who 
ee 

accept their HIV-infected males’ refusal to wear condoms, 
  tree Pe ery 

even being fully aware of the risk of infection and its 
      
lethal consequences. This upbringing is also seen in the 

~~, — 
* 
  

woman's acceptance of repeated infidelity, even when aware 
—— 

  

  

that such behavior could result in HIV infection. eee eS ee 

It is thus imperative that we direct our educational 
a -   

efforts toward empowering the Puerto Rican woman. Power can 
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be achieved by a case management approach which would enable 

her to survive in a highly-competitive and bureaucratic 

world, providing her with financial and legal assistance and 

accessibility to educational and employment opportunities. 

The most important aspect of this approach would be 

to provide aid hand-in-hand with counseling in an attempt to 

effectively modify attitudes and behavior that will lead to 

risk reduction. Only with this approach will our educational 

efforts for HIV prevention in the Puerto Rican woman be 

productive. Only with this approach will we be able to 

significantly reduce heterosexually-transmitted AIDS and thus 

the number of Puerto Rican women and children with AIDS. 

Thank you very much. 

[Applause. ] 

VICE-CHAIRMAN ROGERS: Thank you very much, Dr. 

Santiago. 

Ms. de los Angeles? 

MS. CALDERON [Interpreted from Spanish]: Good 

morning. 

I am Mrs. Maria Calderon, mother of four children 

ages 16, 12, 2 years and one year. The last one is a boy. I 

was living with a man who used drugs from 1987 to 1988, and 
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when I knew he was using drugs, I terminated my relationship 

with him. 

This man died on April 16, and I learned of the 

risk that I was under. When I heard of this, I decided to 

find information in respect to AIDS for my family, my 

children and myself. I heard of the project, "Tu, Mujer", 

"You, Woman". It is a very special project, and they have 

helped me a lot. 

I submitted myself to a test, and I am HIV-positive. 

Then they referred me to the CLET clinic in the Medical 

Center at Rio Piedras, and there, the doctors at CLET treated 

me with vitamins and medication for my hands. The "Tu, 

Mujer" project referred me to the WIC program, and I was also 

treated because of the same condition; my defenses were very 

low, so Dr. Zorilla told me that I was a very good candidate 

for AZT because the glands in my neck have grown, I have low 

defenses and very low hemoglobin. So they gave me a prescrip- 

tion for AZT, and sent me to CLET to get the medication there 

because they are the ones who are distributing it. There, a 

woman doctor--I don’t remember her name--told me that she 

could not give me the AZT because I was not a resident of Rio 

Piedras. I asked her what was the reason she was doing this 
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to me, that I am a patient of the Medical Center, why would 

she do this to me, and she told me that she could not give me 

this prescription because when she helped Dr. Zorilla’s 

patients, her patients would be deteriorating. 

So I went back to Dr. Zorilla, and I explained the 

situation, and I had to go home without a prescription. The 

doctor at CLET who denied the prescription told me she was 

going to refer me to the Bayamon Regional Hospital in my 

area. I went there, and they wanted to do the test again and 

start all over again. I rejected that, because I had had the 

test done, and I rejected the fact that I had to submit 

myself to other tests because I had submitted myself to 

tests. If I qualified, I wanted it, and I had been told yes. 

So they gave me an evaluation--the very good 

doctors that I have at the Regional Hospital--and at the 

present time, I am under the AZT program. 

One of my children, the one year-old male, also 

tested positive. He is one full year of age, and he is being 

attended at the Regional Hospital in Bayamon. I told her 

that I noticed a gland on this child. She did not pay 

attention. She simply placed him under a certain treatment, 

and that is all, and on Mondays, Wednesdays and Fridays he is     
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getting antibiotic treatment. That is where I am. The tests 

have not been repeated. He is being seen every three months. 

I do not understand what type of health care is being given 

to my child, to my baby. 

Let me see if I am leaving anything out. [Pause.)] 

The problem that I bring before you is that I have not been 

| given any orientation, counseling with respect to nourishment; 

I have not been given any orientation as to how to live with 

this. There is no orientation here as to services for 

nourishment, care, nutrition assistance--nothing. With 

respect to women, the project "Tu, Mujer", terminates this 

month, and we will not have that project. Aside from this 

project, we have nothing else that deals directly with women. 

So I ask you, please, do something so that women 

who live with drug addicts can have better care and can learn 

how to protect themselves more. I think that is the person 

who is at a more high risk; that is my understanding. 

So on my behalf I say to women that AIDS does not 

discriminate, not sex-wise nor age-wise, and while there is 

life, there is hope. So if you have it, let’s learn how to 

deal with it and to ask God to help us not to bring children 

into this world to suffer. We need your help. 
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[Applause. ] 

VICE-CHAIRMAN ROGERS: Thank you very much, Mrs. 

Calderon. 

Thank you all for being so brief and so moving. I 

| think we will now ask for questions from the panel. 

Dr. Novello? 

SURGEON GENERAL NOVELLO: I don’t know if I’m going 

to do this in spanish or English. 

[Interpreted from Spanish]: It is very good to see 

all of you today, knowing that we work together in pediatrics, 

and Dr. Zorilla being the ob-gyn, together with Dr. [in- 

audible], who sees every patient with AIDS in this land. 

[In English]: But I wonder, I wonder if the woman 

of Puerto Rico really knows that when she is not at risk by 

being an i.v. drug abuser or by being the partner of an i.v. 

drug abuser, if she, just by being a women and having normal 

sex with partners that she does not know, is at risk. 

Does she? 

DR. FELICIANO [Interpreted from Spanish]: I am 

going to answer in Spanish. 

I think that in general terms, no, she is not aware 

of the great risk, and this is one of the tasks that we must 

  
   



  

ah 

MILLER REPORTING CO., INC. 

$07 C Sueet, NE 

Washington, DC 20002 

(202) 546-6666     

93 

handle, that we must carry out. I mentioned that we had to 

improve our educational programs and that they must be more 

aggressive, and we must use the tools through women, and in 

addition to giving them the tools, to make them aware of the 

risks they have. 

We are directing our services of primary care 

through [inaudible], and these centers are not directed to 

drug users exclusively. They are directed to the entire 

population at these centers. We go to the communities, to 

housing projects, universities, and we talk to everybody. We 

cannot talk about risk groups. This epidemic started with 

Haitians, bisexuals, drug addicts, but it has become part of 

the daily lives of any person who has sexual contact, with 

anyone. 

I personally believe that our women in Puerto Rico 

are not aware of the severity of their problem, and one of 

the priorities that we must have in our educational programs 

should be directed to the female population in general terms. 

SURGEON GENERAL NOVELLO: This is where I need your 

help, is AIDS with women. I can see that 21 percent of all 

cases of AIDS in Puerto Rico are females. Perhaps they are 

thinking that if they may be upper and middle class women, in 
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higher classes, who are not in consensual relationships, that 

this is not going to happen to them. This is one thing. 

In the second place, we are in a country where our 

culture makes us aware of what happens in "social Fridays", 

they say. Let’s not judge “social Fridays", but I think that 

prevention cannot be given only to women; I think there 

should be prevention for men, also, as well as women. 

Otherwise their families are going to disappear. 

Second, I think if we are going to be ourselves 

protectors, we must engage the protection of our husbands, 

our boyfriends. If we do not engage their help, we are not 

going to have full prevention. It is going to be read but it 

is not going to be followed. 

Prevention must be both for women and for men, 

because behind every infected woman there is an infected man, 

and there is a child who is going to be born infected. We 

must not just direct prevention to one place, but we must 

inform people that we must not keep using our instincts; we 

must use our intellect. That way, prevention, protection and 

education today, and not only for the high-risk groups but 

for the entire female population, and not ignoring men, not 

leaving them out, because we have many women who tell us 
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today that they have the same stigmatization that they had in 

prior populations, and if they were able to deal with the 

problem, we must do something for our new female generation. 

We must learn to protect ourselves. We must be aware, even 

if the man is very handsome and speaks very nicely--we must 

protect ourselves, we must protect ourselves. But if you 

love him, and he loves you, you must protect yourselves 

mutually--but do it always. What you do today, if you don’t 

remember what you did last Monday, how can you remember what 

you did seven years ago? 

So please, prevention at both levels, at two 

levels. What is happening today is happening to women who 

are not drug addicts. 

VICE-CHAIRMAN ROGERS: It looks like several of you 

wish to answer. 

Dr. Zorilla, and then Dr. Diaz. 

DR. ZORILLA: The best example that our messages 

are not getting out is the one about cigarette smoking. 

There are lots of campaigns against cigarette smoking and 

against cigarette smoking during pregnancy. And I have seen 

in this population that the sero-negative controls quit 

smoking very easily during pregnancy and afterwards; but the 
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sero-positives do not quite smoking. And smoking does not 

have bias and does not have the impact of talking about 

condoms and sex. 

The second example is the nse of condoms_by these 
———e 

women. Only 20 percent of them have ever used condoms in 

  

their lives. 

cee 

VICE-CHAIRMAN ROGERS: Thank you. 

Dr. Diaz. 

DR. DIAZ: I would like to add a comment that I 

think makes a big difference in transmission rates and also 

in disease progression. 

I think Puerto Rico has experienced a longer 

history than most other areas except perhaps certain regions 
~— 

in the Eastern seaboard of the United States. Longer history 
aa 

  

  eemee, 

with exposure to HIV means that the viruses have been in 
_ cure? 

latency stage long enough that now they activate and go into 
Piece, 

  

  

| very active replicative cycle. And I think the risk of 

  

transmission, even in one encounter, in Puerto Rico may be 
—   

~~ 

much, much higher than that in other cities where the average 
  

  

viral load is not in as active a cycle as I think it is in 
erat 

  

Puerto Rico. 
ee 

We have also seen in children that children born to 
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infected mothers here progress much more rapidly. I think 

that will cause a big impact in Puerto Rico. 

VICE-CHAIRMAN ROGERS: Yes, Mrs. de los Angeles, 

did you wish to make a comment? 

MRS. CALDERON [Interpreted from Spanish]: Yes. I 

had forgotten to add that many times I have gone to the 

Office of Family Planning to receive the contraception 

methods, the condoms, and I have had to wait two and three 

days in asking them for condoms because they don’t have them 

available. When you go, you have to wait hours and hours to 

be told that they don't have them--"Come tomorrow," "Come day 

after tomorrow." A week passes, and we don’t have any 

protection. I think this is a problem that is affecting the 

community, especially women. And myself, because I am 

infected, it is affecting me very much. So I think that you 

can do something about that. 

VICE-CHAIRMAN ROGERS: Thank you. 

Mr. Goldman and then Mr. Dalton, and then we're 

going to have to quit. 

COMMISSIONER GOLDMAN: Thank you. 

Any of you who can answer the question for me can. 

My understanding is that at the present time all children 
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born in Puerto Rico are tested for HIV, at the same time the 

PKU testing is done. That is correct, is it not? 

DR. DIAZ: There are two separate programs. There 

is a seroprevalence study currently going on, conducted by 

CDC, which is an anonymous survey of newborn specimens, and 

that is the one you are referring to. That one was initiated 

by CDC primarily as a seroprevalence gathering data, just to 

quantify the magnitude of the problem. 

But the program that we are talking about is a 

prenatal screening/testing offered during the first prenatal 

visit and offers, then, enrollment into the follow-up program 

both for mothers and infants in the health region that the 

university hospitals cover. That is a much more limited 

program. 

The Central Office for AIDS Affairs is considering 

now the option of extending that to the rest of the island. 

I don’t know at what stage they are in and if that is already 

in process. 

COMMISSIONER GOLDMAN: Do any of you know the data 

on that surveillance study in terms of what the seroprevalence 

rates are, both in terms of public hospitals and private 

hospitals, in the City of San Juan and outside the City of 
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San Juan, and what that implies in terms of how many new 

children are being born each month who are HIV-positive? 

DR. DIAZ: Yes. There is actually ample data that 

will be made available to you and all the members of the 

Commission on the seroprevalence of newborns in different 

regions. It again underlines what we had seen in the very 

limited prenatal screening that we had done, that the 

prevalence is high, an average of one percent, but with 

different variations according to the region in Puerto Rico 

as well as public versus private hospital setting. 

  

and reaching as high as_1.53 percent, but still, even in the 
Te ee ee 

  

private sector within the metropolitan region, it is much 

higher than you would see or has been documented in other 

centers outside of Puerto Rico, in the mainland, that_are 

doing the same survey. 
The actual figures will be made available to you 

and will be included in the information that you will have. 

VICE-CHAIRMAN ROGERS: Dr. Feliciano? 

DR. FELICIANO: We have conducted several seropre- 

  

valence. 

But as I say, in the Sentinel Hospital in the last year, in 
— - __!# 
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the ob cases, supposedly not at high risk, it came out to 3,8. 

What we are seeing in our Diagnostic and Treatment 

Centers is a 3 percent general seropositivity and in the 

clinics in which we are dealing with STD, we are getting 10 

percent of all the samples of our clients. 

One thing I would mention is that we will be 

seeing, and we will have data very soon, the close relation 

between positive STD, syphilis, gonorrhea, chlamydia, and the 

higher percentage of positivity of HIV. 

VICE-CHAIRMAN ROGERS: Mr. Daiton, you have the 

last question, and then we’re going to have to quit. 

COMMISSIONER DALTON: A brief comment and then a 

question for Dr. Zorilla. 

I understand the emphasis today on this panel and 

by the Commission on the problem of heterosexual transmission 

of HIV to women. I am just concerned, though, that we not 

lose sight of the fact that at least until 1992, more than 

half the women with AIDS are infected because of intravenous 

drug use. My concern is that people who focus on intravenous 

drug use tend to focus on men i.v. drug users as the model, 

and there are any number of different ways in which one would 

look at that problem if one recognized that women, too, are 
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at risk. So I just want to make sure the balance doesn’t get 

too far out of kilter. 

My question is for Dr. Zorilla. I understand the 

ethical dilemma of being a researcher and documenting 

dramatically the need for treatment among people and then 

finding no treatment available--there is money for research 

i by you and by Dr. Diaz, but we can’t seem to keep "Tu, Mujer" 

afloat or provide help to people like Mrs. Calderon in how to 

live with this disease. 

There is also the dilemma, exemplified in your 

testimony, of caring about women, but primarily because of 

the possibility that they may transmit to children. If I 

understand your testimony, the AZT, for example, is provided 

much more to symptomatic children than to their mothers. And 

I guess my question is what can we do, what can researchers 

like yourselves do, to make sure that the research is not way 

out ahead of treatment and that women don’t get lost, given 

problems with their children. 

DR. ZORILLA: I know that research funds have their 

| limitations, but I do feel that if you consider some kind of 

basic treatment as an incentive for patients to be recruited 

into studies, then you could include such a treatment under 
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the umbrella of research. That would also benefit if we 

could, for example, in a research project where we give 

zidovudine to pregnant women just to try to prevent fetal 

transmission, but then after delivery there is no zidovudine 

/for that woman if she needs it. So that is something that we 

should address. 

DR. DIAZ: Can I add that it is fraught with danger 

and creates enormous dilemmas for us. We cannot do research 

if we do not provide primary care, if we do not give care. 

That is an absolute essential. If we are not able to give 

the adequate care, we will not do research. Those two have 

to be together, and access to therapy has to be in hand with 

what is available in other cities. 

VICE-CHAIRMAN ROGERS: Thank you for a very 

powerful message. 

[Applause. ] 

VICE-CHAIRMAN ROGERS: You have been a very 

eloquent panel, and we thank you all. The women and children 

of Puerto Rico are fortunate to have all of you as their 

advocates. 

We are going to take a 15-minute break, and we're 

going to try and mean that it is a 15-minute break, which 
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would bring you back at 11:20. 

Thank you all. 

[Short recess. ] 

CHAIRMAN OSBORN: I want to welcome the final panel 

for the morning and thank you for your patience, since we are 

running quite late. We appreciate your willingness to wait 

for us. 

I will ask you to introduce yourselves as you speak 

and ask you to make it as brief as you can because of the 

pressure of time. We have site visits this afternoon, which 

will mean that we are going to have to compress the remainder 

of the morning’s program somewhat. So if you can focus our 

attention on your key points and be as brief as you can 

Manage, we will surely appreciate that. 

Thank you for your cooperation. 

Mr. Morales? 

MR. MORALES [Interpreted from Spanish]: Good 

morning, distinguished members of the Commission on AIDS. I 

am here to present for the National Commission on AIDS, and I 

coordinate the program of health education. 

In the name of our office and myself, I appreciate 

your kindness in inviting us to speak this morning. 
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As you know, health education is a fundamental 

strategy for the achievement of better health because we can 

change behavior and attitudes that put the health of everyone 

at risk. We start from the premise that health is a personal 

value and it is the primary responsibility of the individual. 

In the Central AIDS Office, one of the main areas of 

priority is the structure of the education area. We have 

three educators for each one of the immunology centers, which 

are located in each one of the education centers. We also 

have the aid of educators for the San Juan Education and 

Prevention Center. 

The efforts in AIDS education go back to the 1980s 

| when, once it was determined that it is a serious situation 

that affects the public health of Puerto Rico, we had a great 

  

  

initiative, especially in the health centers and the educa- 
= 

es 

tional centers. 

  

Also, in addition to the initiatives at the Latin 

American Center for Sexually-Transmitted Disease, it is 

necessary to recognize the cooperation we have received from 

the epidemiologists from the Epidemiology Program of the 

Health Department and the demonstration projects in pediatric 

AIDS and AIDS in adults.   
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During this period, we have a series of activities. 

We have organized and developed training for professional 

staff in coordination with the Latin American Center for 

Sexually-Transmitted Disease and the AIDS Education Center 

for Health Professionals of the Medical Campus of the 

University of Puerto Rico. 

We had conferences for orientation for staff on HIV 

and AIDS and the development of training of staff for beauty 

shops, barber shops and beauty schools. We had activities at 

the community level, for health educators, and assistance in 

other professions. We have orientation in health education 

for community organizations which are interested in developing 

programs for AIDS patients, orientation for the community, 

distribution of educational materials, participation of 

health educators in counseling on HIV, publication of press 

articles and participation in health conferences to orient 

the public in general. 

Specifically, the Latin American Center for 

Sexually-Transmitted Disease, which has been a group that has 

worked the most, has developed a series of training activities 

on AIDS and HIV, activities for patients and relatives, and 

conferences for high-risk groups. During the period between 
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1985 and 1990, close to 21,726 persons have benefitted from 

this type of education. 

We also want to talk about the material that has 

been distributed--51,936 units of educational material have 

been distributed to students and professionals and health 

educators. We have answered 34,394 calls from the Help Line, 

where we give general information to persons who call 

regarding HIV and strategies for prevention. 

We have also had participation of demonstration 

projects on pediatric AIDS and AIDS in adults. The year 

1989-90 has been the year when we carried out these two 

programs, and 6,103 persons have been reached through 

education for patients and relatives, and in community 

activities. In the case of pediatric demonstration projects, 

2,140 persons have been reached. 

It is necessary to indicate the initiatives in the 

health education area; in spite of the fact that they were 

supported by the Health Department, in this period we didn’t 

have a centralized program to facilitated its implementation 

and to assign resources for activities. With the creation of 

the Central Office for AIDS, we have a greater priority, and 

these responsibilities are shared by health educators and by 
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the other teams that participate in this. I am talking about 

the period from the time the Central Office was created. 

After I was appointed Director of Health Education, 

we developed the following activities. We have recruited 

eight public health educators for both regional and central 

levels; we have had training 432 persons. We have par- 

ticipated in activities with 20,000 young people between 14 

and 21 years of age. We have developed a working plan for 

the area of health education based on the Government Action 

Plan, and we have a series of activities that appear in the 

documents that you have. 

In spite of the efforts that we have carried out to 

the moment, the demand for services is tremendous. The AIDS 

Central Office is willing to satisfy the most, and for that, 

we have placed emphasis in the following areas. We provide 

education to the community and through mass communication 

media. These groups include education to HIV-negative low- 

  

risk, HIV-negative high-risk, and HIV-positive. We also. 

  

attempt to provide education to change behavior in the gay 
      

      and drug addict population. We provide education for 
TT mel 

families and patients that come to the community centers. We 

carry out activities and education in relation to the AIDS 
co   
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programs among those groups that are high-risk. 

The techniques of risk reduction will include pre 

and post counseling individually and in groups and outreach 

| programs, exchange programs for sharing of needles, showing 

the addict about use of condoms, and a seminar for values in 

the young groups. 

We also want to exchange information, educational 

exchange, for prevention, such as the AIDS Institute, AIDS 

Foundation, in home care. We have coordinated services and 

different activities. To mention some, the AIDS Foundation, 

AIDS Institute, Department of Education, the [inaudible] home; 

all these activities have been coordinated with training, 

counseling, exchange of human resources, educational materia- | 

ls, just to give you some examples. 

We also want to design, reproduce and distribute 

| educational material for the population in general. We have 

started in that we want to use the agencies that provide 

public services to distribute this information, to establish 
STs 

an information center for information on HIV and AIDS, and to 
c a a =e 

create a resource center that will include literature, 
ee 

investigative work, research, and anything that has to do with 

  

HIV and AIDS; development of training for the staff, and 
  ——_ 

a= —_, 
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on AIDS and HIV will reach all the school groups. With that, 

I think there will be some work, representation by the 

Department of Education, and also to establish the infrastruc- 

ture to facilitate education and prevention among the 

population. 

The importance of public health is recognized in 

the management of HIV and AIDS. We must assign whatever 

resources are available for this effort, but it cannot be the 

sole responsibility of OCAS. It must be a shared respon- 

sibility by the Government, private enterprise, and the 

community in general. That is what we are committed to. 

Thank you very much. 

{Applause. ] 

VICE-CHAIRMAN ROGERS: Thank you. 

Dr. Gely? 

DR. GELY: Good morning, distinguished guests, 

distinguished members of the National Commission on AIDS. 

First of all, I want to thank you for the invitation 

to share with you some of the data and some of the activities 

and some of the concerns and recommendations that we are 

confronting here in Puerto Rico in the area of AIDS education    
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and training to health professionals. 

As you mentioned before, you have a copy of my 

testimony, and I will try to just summarize the most important 

issues, and I prefer to speak in Spanish, so please use your 

earphones again. 

{Interpreted from Spanish]: My name is Daisy Gely, 

Director of the AIDS Education and Training Center of the 

University of Puerto Rico. I have been working in the area 

of continuous education for health professionals during the 

past eight years. 

Before I go ahead and share with you some of the 

findings of the tasks carried out and some of the recommenda- 

tions that we wish to share with you, I hope that we do not 

lose sight of two important elements. 

When we speak of education and training for health 

professionals--it is the same community, but my emphasis is 

on health professionals--we have to acknowledge and not 

forget that the changes through education are not achieved 

from one day to the next. Education is a process and as 

such, the final results that we are going to obtain from 

these interventions, we are going to look at them long range, 

even though we obtain short range data. 
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Second, when we are working in the education area, 

we should not forget that education has as its purpose to 

achieve changes in knowledge, changes in attitudes and skills 

of the health professionals so that they may effectively work 

with people affected with HIV or AIDS. And I emphasize these 

three phases--attitude, et cetera. 

Precisely, the testimony that has preceded as well 

as experience do not show that we can achieve more immediate 

results in the area of knowledge, but in the areas of skills 

and attitudes, which especially require a bit more time. 

This is one of the problems that we are facing today with the 

health professionals, that is, changing attitudes to look at 

the person affected with HIV or AIDS as just any other human 

being on their own terms. 

Since 1983, the Medical Sciences Campus has 

developed a series of training activities through the 

Division of Continuing Education. In 1986 and 1988, two 

symposia on AIDS were conducted, cosponsored by the National 

Institutes of Health and local organizations. Approximately 

2,000 participants attended each activity. Between 1986 and 

1987 funds were assigned for the publication in Spanish of a 

booklet entitled, "AIDS: Manual of Information and Resources     
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for Health Professionals". 

The initiative taken by the Medical Sciences Campus 

in this area has been more evident in the establishment of 

the Puerto Rico AIDS Education and Training Center for Health 

Professionals, started in June 1988 through a subcontract 

with New York/Caribe AIDS Regional Education and Training 

Center. This project operates under Federal funds. During 

the past two years since this project has been established, 

from 1988 to the present, I will point out two of the most 

| important achievements, some of the difficulties and some of 

the projections that we have in dealing with these difficul- 

ties, and recommendations we wish to share with you. 

We know that in many communities the health 

professionals have access to the training programs. General- 

ly, the trend is to centralize the training activities, and 

that is why the professionals in order to participate are 

limited because of only metropolitan areas. 

So what we did was to establish six regional 

educational centers--and you have these in the written 

document--so that the health professional would have the 

opportunity to attend these activities on education and 

training on AIDS, to assist near their regions of work. 
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Another important thing contributing to lowering 

the barriers is that each one of the entities, the agencies, 

public and private, where health professionals are working, 

in some measure have populations that are affected by HIV and 

AIDS. We have appointed a liaison person who, together with 

ETC, sits down and prepare the training programs in such a 

way that they respond to the specific needs of those health 

professionals. } 

Another thing that I wish to share with you is that 

on many occasions we do not have on hand up-to-date medical 

information that erases doubts that we have in terms of 

transmission, of treatment, so we have established an 

information center located in the School of Medicine of the 

University of Puerto Rico that is not only accessible to the 

facilitators, but also as a resource for the teachers who are 

| preparing the future health professionals, because we 

understand the process of education has to be part of the 

curriculum of the future health professionals. 

Another thing that I wish to share with you and 

with the public here present is that in the time that we have 

been working, we have been able to reach 6,000 health 

professionals. Actually, we have 40,000 health professionals, 
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and we have touched about 6,000 to 7,000 of these profes- 

Sionals. The majority are nurses; second, social workers: 

third, professionals in health, and fourth, doctors and 

dentists. 

We have been concerned, and we share this concern 

with others who receive these services from these profes- 

sionals; we know that we have not reached a high number of 

doctors and dentists, not only in the public sector but also 

in the private sector. So we continue to have this concern. 

To increase this number and to involve the doctors 

in these areas of training, we have adopted various strate- 

gies, but I wish to share only two of them with you. On many 

occasions, we are able to get better results when there is a 

peer who is making the outreach to the professional to 

involve him or her in these training activities. So we are 

now having a medical liaison who will reach the other 

doctors to make the training accessible to them. 

Second, we are also conducting needs studies in 

meetings with nurses, doctors and dentists in order to see in 

fact what are the lacks, what are the areas, how much do they 

know, how much is knowledge, how much is attitude. This 

experience is giving us very good results, and we are finding 

re oe eee 
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that the professionals are recognizing that there are 

definitely some lags, and therefore in the next years as we 

continue to work on the proposal that we are going to be 

submitting in the following three years, we will incorporate 

a great deal of clinical experience that has to do with 

administration, management and intervention. 

However--and this is the last point I wish to share 

with you--we know that definitely, as I said at the beginning, 

the education process has to impact attitudes. Our education- 

al experience makes us satisfied in terms of the knowledge 

that we are imparting, but we still have a lag in the part of 

attitudes and skills. 

I wish to leave in your minds, definitely, to 

change attitudes and to increase skills of intervention 

require educational mechanisms that are different--we cannot 

look only at the number of persons reached, but what can we 

do with those we are reaching. This means that in the next 

few years when we evaluate the results of the educational 

interventions, that we should not only look at numbers but we 

should look at quality. If we work with attitudes, we have 

to work in smaller groups, with different strategies, with 

different resources, and therefore maybe we cannot reach that 
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large number; but if we are able to say that we have achieved 

change in fewer people, but those where we have achieved 

| those changes will be role models in the work areas. So this 

is something that I wish to leave in your minds. 

And second, which is a recommendation, is that 

definitely, changes are not achieved overnight. Educational 

|| intervention once, twice, will not change the attitudes, the 

beliefs, the customs of our Puerto Rican population, including 

ourselves as health professionals--we are subject to values, 

to beliefs, to prejudices, to discrimination--and we have to 

work with this because we are part of a culture. And 

definitely we need to continue to strengthen and continue to 

develop training activities in order that we be able to feel 

in the very near future satisfied with the results that we 

will achieve in our professionals. 

Thank you very much. 

[Applause. ] 

CHAIRMAN OSBORN: Thank you very much. 

Mr. Nieves? 

MR. NIEVES: Good morning. 

My name is Enrique Nieves, and I am with the 

Central Office for AIDS Affairs, OCAS, which is part of the     
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Department of Health of Puerto Rico. 

I would like to thank the members of this distin- 

guished Commission for giving me the opportunity to express 

my thoughts this morning. 

I will start by saying that in 1985, when the Food 

and Drug Administration approved the ELISA antibody test to 

screen blood supplies for HIV, the Centers for Disease 

Control approved funds to be used in the establishment of 

alternate testing sites. These sites were to provide persons 

engaging in high-risk behavior for AIDS an alternative to 

going to a blood bank for an HIV antibody test. 

Puerto Rico opened four of these sites--one each in 
a, 

Ponce, Rio Piedras, Mayaguez, and Caguas. In 1986, funds 
  

  eee 

were also provided by CDC to initiate risk reduction ac- 
» 

  

  

        Peer 

tivities in Puerto Rico. Thus the beginning of the HIV 
  

al 

Prevention Program within the Department of Health. 
  

  

TN _ a 

p—————" Poday the HIV Prevention Program as part of the 

newly-formed Central Office for AIDS Affairs, OCAS by its 

Spanish acronym, has expanded counseling and testing services 

on the island. There are now over 61 counseling and testing 
em   

sites operating in Puerto Rico, providing services to the 
= —— 

general public. 
ee   
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To the HIV-positive patient, these counseling and 

testing sites serve as the entrance into a large support 

infrastructure consisting of immunology clinics, psychosocial 

services, hospitals and hospices. 

The Health Education/Risk Reduction and public 
ee 

Noe 

information efforts have also improved. OCAS offers contracts 

to community-based organizations and other Government 

  

entities to expand Health Education/Risk Reduction activities. 

OCAS outreach teams are reaching more persons in the high- 

risk target areas of the island. 

Public information is being disseminated through 

the Puerto Rican airwaves and press. Posters, bumper 

stickers and promotion materials have been distributed 

throughout the island. 

Despite all the improvements, priorities are still 

being identified to continue our never-ending efforts against 

AIDS. 

Heterosexual i.v. drug users continue to be the 

group with the highest incidence of AIDS and HIV infection. 

It is interesting to point out that the hierarchy of patient 

groups confirmed with AIDS is different from those of 

patients testing positive for HIV at the counseling and 
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testing sites. I refer you to Figure 1 in my handout. 

This difference should be explored further, since a 

group such as heterosexual females may require different 

services than gay males. And if there is difficulty in 

attracting gay males to the counseling and testing sites, 

then we should explore avenues to attract this group or any 

other group that may be staying away from counseling and 

testing sites for any reason. 

Needs assessments must take into consideration 

these differences in the hierarchy of patient groups if the 

HIV Prevention Program is to effectively plan ahead for 

future services. 

Outreach activities among the i.v. drug users must 

remain priority within the program, but the focus of these 

outreach activities should be redirected to street interven- 

tion to promote drug treatment and referral, elimination of 

needle-sharing behavior, safer injection education through 

proper needle exchange programs, and demonstrations of proper 

condom use to persons in the streets engaging in risky 

behavior. We must take the classrooms to the streets. 

Puerto Rico can no longer afford to be conservative 
TT ae 

in its policy toward HIV prevention. We must study and 
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programs and drug maintenance programs for injectable drugs. 

| Public information must also be used to raise 

conscience among Puerto Ricans. In the recent past, lack of 

concern and understanding were the reasons why public 

information was not a priority. Situations like the one in 

Luquillo, where residents opposed the construction of a 

shelter for AIDS patients, must be defused before any 

}erroneous information gets into the community. In the 

Luquillo case, the problem was compounded with a misinforma- 

tion campaign. 

Confidential testing and voluntary partner notifica- 

tion must be another priority within the HIV Prevention 

Program. Puerto Rico now has an infrastructure to care for 

any person testing positive for HIV. It is in the best 

interest of the patients to know and understand their 

condition, just as it is in the best interest of the program 

to maintain sero-negative those individuals testing negative 

and exhibiting high-risk behavior. We must continue to rely 

on voluntary partner notification until a better way of 

providing education and information to partners of those who 

test positive is found. 
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In 1989, CDC sent a special enjoy to explore the 

possibility of integrating AIDS services in Puerto Rico. In 

his report, the envoy recommended that an umbrella organiza- 

tion with fiscal responsibilities be created to coordinate all 

AIDS/HIV activities on the island. 

The Central Office for AIDS Affairs, OCAS, was 

created to coordinate such activities. In July of 1990, OCAS 
  

made a major commitment to fund 32 new disease intervention 

  ee, 

specialist positions, marking the first time that Common- 
  

wealth funds will be used in Health Education/Risk Reduction 
~ 

activities within the HIV Prevention Program. Since the 

Gv Se “> 

initial CDC grant awarded in 1985, no significant amount of 

  

  

commonwealth moneys have been assigned to the HIV Prevention 
ne eR ee 

Program. 

  

The new plan to combat AIDS will address the actual 

needs of Puerto Rico if funded properly. OCAS may very well 

be the only institution with enough resources and expertise 

needed to integrate the five essential components for a       comprehensive and much-needed AIDS strategy in Puerto Rico. 

These five essential components are community-based 

organizations, prevention programs, treatment centers, 

hospitals and hospices, including shelters. 
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Community-based organizations that are currently 

running risk reduction programs can be immediately funded to 

continue and expand pertinent services, thereby reducing the 

delay in hiring staff and in program development that usually 

occurs in Government agencies. 

Prevention programs must concentrate on implement- 

ing health education/risk reduction strategies proven 

effective with all patient groups. Treatment centers must 

offer persons with HIV infection a supermarket approach or 

rather, a one-stop-for-all clinical and psychosocial services 

needed. 

More hospitals and shelters must be built for 

patients with acute and terminal conditions as well as 

hospices and home health services for patients with chronic 

conditions. 

The proper integration of these services will help 

us reduce the incidence of HIV, increase knowledge of AIDS, 

| improve patient care, and improve surveillance and reporting 

of cases. 

In conclusion let me just say that funds are still 

desperately needed for AZT treatment and alternatives to AZT 

|/treatment, not only for all AIDS patients who need it, but 
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also for prophylactic treatment of HIV-infected patients who 

are asymptomatic. For this, we must start by helping with 

lobbying efforts in the U.S. Congress to eliminate funding 

ceilings on Medicaid and other Federal programs in Puerto 

Rico, in addition to identifying new sources of funds locally. 

As an afterthought, upon reflecting on this 

problem, I have found that the situation is so overwhelming 

that it requires a radical change in the way we view problems. 

The solutions may jolt the foundations of our 

traditional values and beliefs. Five thousand cases should 

not simply be a figure to justify funding. Five thousand 

cases are 5,000 fellow Puerto Ricans who must be cared for at 

all costs in the tradition of collectivism and survival that 

has been the bulwark of Puerto Rican society since Taino 

times. 

We exhort all Puerto Ricans to work together to rid 

Puerto Rico of this terrible malady before we lose a genera- 

tion of productive Puerto Ricans. 

Thank you. 

[Applause. ] 

CHAIRMAN OSBORN: Thank you very much. 

Dr. Santiago? 

  
   



  

  

ah 

MILLER REPORTING CO., INC, 

$07 C Street, N.E. 

Washington, D.C. 20002 

(202) 546-6666     

124 

DR. SANTIAGO: Good afternoon, honorable Commission 

on AIDS, and all of those present here this afternoon. 

My name is Wilfredo Santiago, and I work in the 

AIDS Foundation in Puerto Rico. I started to work as a case 

manager, and actually, I am the director of operations of the 

Project Alto al SIDA, that is, "Stop AIDS". This project is 

directed exclusively to the bisexual and homosexual community 

in Puerto Rico. It is of extreme importance for us, the 

homosexual men and bisexual men who live in Puerto Rico, the 

objectives that bring you to this meeting. 

The bisexual and homosexual community in our 

country is under a veil of persecution and attack that we 

know as "homophobia". The principal areas of the Government, 

sadly, manifest this prejudice, and as a consequence at the 

present time the programs on education and prevention of AIDS 

in Puerto Rico do not include in their work plan to reach our 

community. 

It is curious and somehow paradoxical that this 

homosexual and bisexual sector of our population is impacted 

in accordance with the CLET, the Latin American Center for 

Sexually-Transmitted Disease, to make something of this. 

The statistics as of November 5, 1990--statistics     
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that you as well as we have in our hands--show that one-third 

of the cases reported respond to homosexual and bisexual men 

in our country. 

If we go ahead under the premise that the cases 

reported are only a fraction of the existing cases, and that 

for each case of AIDS there are ten asymptomatic cases, this 

will give us an idea of the magnitude of the problem within 

the homosexual and bisexual community. 

Faced with this situation, the state has not 

assumed a positive attitude with respect to this problem, 

understanding that this is a reality and that the existing 

institutions do not have the criteria for objective interven- 

tion that has given birth to this project, "Stop AIDS" or 

"Alto al SIDA", which is an alternative for the bisexual and 

homosexual community in our country, with the understanding 

that the sexual option of an individual, the lifestyle of an 

individual, should not be an obstacle to their right to 

information and education on prevention of AIDS. 

We have to emphasize the fact that many of you have 

j mot recognized us as a community. We have always existed. 

It is very sad that the AIDS situation should be the cause 

that many of you have to look back to see us as a community. 
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We have always been here. 

In our society it is very difficult to be homosexual 

and bisexual openly. The double life, the hiding, constitutes 

one of the best strategies of survival. This reality has to 

be taken into consideration when you try to carry out work on 

intervention. 

The Project "Alto al SIDA", "Stop AIDS", is in the 

homosexual and bisexual community seeing these characteristics 

not as personal deficiencies but as the result of a society 

that has continuously oppressed us. This movement, "Alto al 

SIDA", is based on the fact that the prevention and the 

awareness of AIDS is only possible if the gay, bisexual and 

homosexual communities take into their own hands the training 

and education on this subject. 

We have been working very hard on the implementation 

of a model, understanding that a model of peers will facilit- 

ate intervention in the community with a higher reach within 

the members of the community. The process of awareness, the 

change of attitude, is better generated in an environment by 

those who are participants, peers. The project has as its 

primary objective the promotion of a professional and 

personal change, reducing high risk sexual conduct among gay 
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and bisexual men in Puerto Rico and to stimulate the par- 

ticipation of gay and bisexual men in organized groups. 

It is important to point out that although the 

process of intervention has not been easy, the project has 

made its presence felt within the community, and at this time 

is getting support from the community. This is evidenced 

i through the active participation of community members in the 

development of the model, and in individual efforts in the 

process of making pressure among individuals to establish new 

rules that will result in the diminution of high-risk sexual 

conduct. 

Our commitment as a project is to stop AIDS within 

our community. My hope, here before you, is to bring to you 

awareness of the need and importance of projects directed to 

the homosexual and bisexual community in Puerto Rico. 

We hope that the governmental institutions will 

support us economically so we may continue to carry out 

effectively the work that our project is carrying out. 

I do not wish to conclude this paper without 

| leaving with you and the public here present a few words, 

that we must understand that we have to respect the decisions 

of persons as well as their lifestyles. 
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Thank you. 

[Applause. ] 

CHAIRMAN OSBORN: Thank you very much. 

We have time only for a couple of quick questions 

because we have a very long list of public commentators, and 

we'll need to talk about that in a minute. 

Don Goldman? 

COMMISSIONER GOLDMAN: Thank you. 

I have a series of quick questions, and I think 

most of them can be answered with a very short "yes" or "no". 

Is the National AIDS Hotline "800" number available 

in Puerto Rico, for Puerto Rican citizens to call? 

MR. NIEVES: Yes. The National AIDS Hotline is 

available, but in Puerto Rico we also have a local hotline. 

COMMISSIONER GOLDMAN: Was the Spanish lanquage 

version of Surgeon General Koop’s report mailed to every 

resident of Puerto Rico as it was in the United States? 

MR. NIEVES: Yes, it was. 

COMMISSIONER GOLDMAN: How many anonymous test 

sites are there in Puerto Rico? 

MR. NIEVES: We have over 61 counseling and testing 

sites. Of those, anyone wishing to have an anonymous test 
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can have the anonymous test. We stress confidential testing 

because we see the need for partner notification. 

COMMISSIONER GOLDMAN: One of the witnesses earlier 

reported that it may take hours of waiting for a person to 

get a condom from a family planning center. What role does 

the Government play in the distribution of condoms, and what 

role ought it be playing? 

MR. NIEVES: As far as public policy for distribu- 

  

tion of condoms, I am not aware that any of the programs are 
_ 

distributing condoms except for the programs engaging in 
[eae 

  

high-risk intervention as far as health education and risk 
—- ==   

reduction is concerned, and the family planning clinics and 

other clinics that cater mainly to female patients. 

COMMISSIONER GOLDMAN: And are there professional 

education programs designed specifically for dentists, allied 

health professionals, judges and other people in the legal 

and correctional system, and teachers in the school system? 

DR. GELY: Yes. For teachers, it depends, because     teachers are not considered health care providers. But 

anyway, if a teacher asks us for some information, we provide 

information. But teachers are not included in our training 

now. 
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MR. MORALES: OCAS has developed different types of 

activities in the area of teacher education. This has been 

offered through the Central Office but also through regional 

instruction at the regional level. That includes training for 

supervisory personnel and also to teachers. On the other 

hand, the Public Education Department has taken initiatives 

in the training area, and there are a number of teachers--I 

don't know exactly the figure--but many teachers have been 

instructed in the HIV and AIDS area. 

CHAIRMAN OSBORN: Eunice? 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Daisy, I’d like to ask you a 

question. The AIDS ETCs primarily have been an interest of 

mine in terms of what they can do to increase manpower and 

people working in HIV, the many hands that we need to be able 

to tend to this epidemic. 

Have you seen, in the brief time that you have 

directed these activities in conjunction with NYU, an 

increase in the number of primary care providers and physici- 

ans and nurses that really want to deal with AIDS as the 

direct result of your activities, or maybe jointly because of 

your activities and someone else’s, and do you think that is 

going to impact what we are seeing here?    
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DR. GELY: The answer is yes, and the answer is yes 

because of the following. Before the ETCs were established, 

so many activities and entities have been trying to put 

together educational programs for health professionals-- 

entities like CLET, for example, and professional associa- 

tions. But they are not doing the education and training 

sessions in a systematic way. 

Now, let me explain something. CLET has been doing 

the training sessions in a systematic way, but we know that 

CLET doesn’t have enough spaces for all the health profes- 

sionals. So as soon as the ETCs start functioning in Puerto 

Rico, we can expand the opportunity for different health 

professionals to attend the training sessions. 

And we know, and we are very convinced, that 

through these activities health professionals start dealing 

with their attitudes and with their position as to dealing 

with persons with AIDS; we know that we have some type of 

input, but we know that we have to do a lot more work. 

CHAIRMAN OSBORN: Let me thank all of you for your 

very useful testimony. We appreciate the input. 

I would like to organize the next bit of time in a 

way that is a bit of a change from what I gather appeared in 
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the newspaper. We have only half an hour scheduled for 

public comment, and we have 20 people who have indicated 

their wish to speak to us. 

Let me first invite anyone who finds that one and 

one-half minutes or thereabouts is too pressed a time to say 

what you want to submit your comments in writing, and we will 

assure you that we will read them and take them seriously, 

and perhaps even understand them better. That is my first 

suggestion. 

What we are going to try and do is to establish two 

microphones so that people can take turns without any time 

for transition. The reason for the time pressure is that we 

have very important commitments at several places at some 

distance on the island where people have gone to extensive 

lengths to prepare for our visits. So I think we must honor 

those commitments, which have been planned for many weeks. 

I therefore hope that each speaker will be as brief 

as you possibly can be--don’t feel obliged to even take up 

your one and one-half minutes. If you can give us the sense 

of what you want us to hear, and if it has been said before, 

underscore it quite briefly, that will be very helpful. 

We do want to hear from you, and we regret having    
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to compress the time so much, but I think it is important so 

that we can get the full benefit of our visit to Puerto Rico. 

I am going to ask Eunice Diaz to help me by calling 

the names, because I know that I will not pronounce them 

correctly if I try, and I am very grateful to Eunice for so 

| doing. 

We will put the timer on, by the way, so we can 

keep track for ourselves, because we must be done before 1:00. 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ: We will call first on Ineke 

Cunningham, Maria del Rosario Rodriguez, and Donald Babb. 

MS. CUNNINGHAM: Distinguished members of the 

Commission and concerned colleagues, in two large surveys of 

2,000 and 4,000 students at the University of Puerto Rico, we 

have found that although 95 percent of the students knew the 

use of condoms decreased the risk of transmission of AIDS, 

only 11 percent of those sexually active indicated they 

always use condoms, and over 40 percent never use them. 

Over 30 percent of women and close to 40 percent of 

men who are sexually active indicate they have engaged in 

anal sex. The reasons given for this practice that the 

decision to engage in anal sex is usually made by men, and 

women accede to their partners’ pleasure. 
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Alcohol use is high, and when students drink, there 

is a high correlation between risk behavior and alcohol 

consumption. If these findings hold true for a fairly 

conservative student population, what kinds of other popula- 

tions are engaging in these risk behaviors? 

Most students indicate they have little actual 

knowledge of how to protect themselves. Seventy percent wish 

to access to courses on sexuality and AIDS, and 90 percent 

would like to see an office of professional counselors. 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Thank you. 

To save time, I will introduce the speakers by 

their titles. Dr. Cunningham is a professor of sociology at 

the University of Puerto Rico. 

Maria del Rosario is also a professor at the 

| University of Puerto Rico in biostatistics. 

MS. DEL ROSARIO RODRIGUEZ [Interpreted from 

Spanish]: Good afternoon. 

My name is Maria del Rosario Rodriguez, and I have 

been a volunteer at the AIDS Foundation since 1987. 

I believe that the contribution of volunteers is 

very important in the management of this disease. In 1989 we 

conducted a study in the AIDS Foundation to quantify the 
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financial contribution of volunteers. The services offered 

include a buddy program for emotional support, a support 

group facilitated by sociologist workers, and practical 

support by health educators. This type of study has not been 

carried out by community organizations frequently enough. 

|Our study reflected a small annual budget of $340,000 during 

1988-89; $130,000 additional were added, or 35 percent of the 

total budget, through contributions of volunteers. 

Volunteers exist, we contribute, and our contribu- 

tion has economic value for society and persons who are 

infected with AIDS. 

Thank you. 

[Applause. ] 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Thank you very much. 

Mr. Donald Babb is former President, Board of 

Directors, Fundacion SIDA. 

MR. BABB: Good morning. My name is Donald Babb. 

I am a journalist and an AIDS volunteer, but I am testifying 

today as a gay man. 

Since the AIDS epidemic began in Puerto Rico in 

1981, there have been 1,332 cases of AIDS reported among gay 

and bisexual men on the island. This is 26 percent of the 
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total number of cases reported as of October 29. In the past 

two years, the number of cases in this population increased 

by 394, a 42 percent increase. 

The Health Department estimates that as many as 40 

  

  

percent of the AIDS cases in Puerto Rico are not reported. 
> X. 

It is my belief that many of these unreported cases are among 

  

gay men who can afford to get care from private physicians 

who are willing to protect their clients’ privacy. 

The 42 percent increase in cases among gay and 

bisexual men compares unfavorably with the rate of increase 

in this population in the United States, which is 36 percent. 

This should lead us to question why the health departments of 
Pe 

Puerto Rico and San Juan have failed to carry out or fund 
————— 

preventive education for this population during the last nine 

  

years and, perhaps more important, why none of the millions 
  

of dollars in Federal funds provided to these agencies for 
  

  

AIDS prevention have been used or made available —to-educate 

gay and bisexual men. 
  

The attempts by community-based organizations to 

get the Government to use a share of these funds to educate 

the gay community has met with two contradictory reactions-- 

it is impossible to reach these people, and gay men are   
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educating themselves--both false statements. 

The new Government plan to deal with AIDS in Puerto 

Rico contains no provision to provide education to gay and 

bisexual men, in spite of the fact that representatives of 

i AIDS service organizations asked that this be included in the 

plan. 

If the rate of increase of AIDS among gay and 

bisexual men does not move the Government to action, perhaps 

the findings of a survey financed by the CDC may. ~The study, 

done by the Northeast Hispanic AIDS Consortium, found that 65 
a — 

percent of the self-identified gay men had unprotected sex 
ne 

  

with another man in the past year. 
  

  

It_ seems clear to me that there is need for massive 
naan 

efforts of preventive education and that the gay community, 
ey 

which is not organized, does not have the clout to force the 
ae 

Government to carry it out. 
—aty   

My_ recommendation is that the Federal Government 
cay 

through the CDC insist and find ways of requiring that 
_ 

whenever funds are given to Government entities, those 
  a 

Government entities ensure that the gay population receives 
ee 

the funds it needs for education. 

a 

  

Thank you. 
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COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Thank you, Donald. 

The next three people come forth: Frank Chardon, 

Hector Colon, and Dr. Victor Liado. 

MR. CHARDON: Good afternoon to everybody. We are 

reaching meal time. 

My experience in the AIDS field has been related to 

AIDS programs in San Juan as director. I direct an indigenous 

outreach to i.v. drug users on the streets. We were very 

successful for a year in terms of changing risk behaviors 

among i.v. drug users in the streets in terms of bleach. In 

terms of sexual condoms, we were not that successful with 

men, but we were very successful in terms of changed behavior 

with female i.v. drug users. 

The success of Rosante [phonetic] both locally and 

nationally was due to the fact that in a year’s time it 

achieved actual behavior modification of risky drug and 

sexual practices, and we were promoting the spread of the 

epidemic. It was a very complex process that I will try to 

convey to you in rather simple terms the most effective 

strategy that led to our success. 

The best place in which to promote AIDS prevention 

among i.v. drug users is in their own neighborhoods, par-     
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ticularly where the action is--in the shooting galleries. 

Since the attention span of drug users is short, use of condom 

demonstrations and safe sexual practice must be given close 

to the place where they solicit their sexual transactions. 

This is not difficult in the case of most female i.v. drug 

users, since there are more or less regular hours and places 

for this type of activity. It is more difficult with the 

male counterparts. 

Printed educational material about AIDS should be 

brief and very visual. I.V. drug users don’t care much about 

reading pamphlets, newspapers, or watching television. 

Pocketbook-sized materials that can fit in their wallets may 

be the best of all. 

The best outreach worker for an i.v. drug user is a 

recovered addict who knows the turf. The empathy that 

recovered addicts have with addicts on the streets enables 

them to do a more satisfactory job on health issues regarding 

AIDS than anybody else. This has been shown by [inaudible] 

and Hogar Crea las Americas. 

It is rather risky to send health professionals 

with proper knowledge of i.v. drug user lifestyle to provide 

services to this population. Furthermore, it is far easier 
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to modify i.v. addiction practices, which are mostly public 

in Puerto Rico, than sexual practices, which are mostly 

private. Furthermore, it seems easier to prevent contamina- 

tion by sharing dirty needles with bleach than to promote a 

new sexual practice of using condoms in intercourse. This 

implies that we have a more difficult task to promote safe 

sexual practice in Puerto Rico than in the United States, due 

to the "macho" lifestyle of our culture. We cannot copy 

sexual materials from the mainland if we do not incorporate 

specific strategies to deal with "machismo" and AIDS. 

Since 1989, no free bleach or condoms or educational 
oo   

——=7 

| materials have been available to the i.v. drug users on the 
  

streets that I serve. Recently, a patient at the day care 

center for AIDS patients that I direct told me: "There were 
  

a ay 

14 guys before me who used the needle." We must face the 
* ee 

eee 

reality that the majority of i.v. drug users are not in drug 
| | eens ee 

treatment and that we have not yet given the means to avoid 

AIDS. 

  

My former staff and myself felt very proud to have 

rendered a valuable service-- 

VICE CHAIRMAN ROGERS: Mr. Chardon, you are going 

to have to conclude quite quickly.        
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MR. CHARDON: Okay. This is the last sentence. My 

former staff and myself were very proud to have rendered a 

valuable service by distributing in a militant way bleach and 

condoms in San Juan. We overcame the usual social and 

political tabus in dealing with condoms. Attached to my 

written statement will be an article on Orisante [phonetic]. 

Thank you very much. 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Thank you so much, Frank. 

[Applause. } 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ: For the sake of time, could we 

withhold the applause until the last witness? 

Dr. Llado? 

DR. LLADO: My name is Victor Llado. I ama 

psychiatrist, and I am president of the Puerto Rico Chapter 

of the American Psychiatric Association. 

I have submitted a position paper that I handed to 

your staffperson during the break, and I trust you have a 

copy of that paper. 

I am a faculty member of the University of Puerto 

Rico, where I teach psychiatric epidemiology at the School of 

Public Health, and law and psychiatry at the Law School of 

the University of Puerto Rico. 
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I come here on behalf of our organization, which 

represents more than two-thirds of the practicing psychiatri- 

sts in Puerto Rico. We submit to you that the rampant 

propagation of AIDS in Puerto Rico is to a considerable 

extent the indirect result of the lack of adequate mental 

health and substance abuse services. 

The Puerto Rico Department of Mental Hygiene, 

besieged by Federal court-imposed fines for its deficient, 

non-[inaudible]-accredited Psychiatric Hospital, although 

improved, still falls very short of meeting the most elemen- 

tary needs of the affected population. 

On the other hand, the Anti-Addiction Services 

Department is a mammoth bureaucracy, functioning in an 

| isolated fashion, which renders fragmented services without 

sufficient coordination with the Health Department. 

One of the most crucial concerns that we would like 

to present to you today is the lack of psychiatric services 

for the AIDS population--indeed, this is the one most serious 

deficiency in the current effort against AIDS in Puerto Rico. 

In this day and age, when we are experiencing such 

an explosion of knowledge in the field of neurosciences, 

including the beginnings of pioneering areas such as psychoim- 
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munology and the development of innovative diagnostic and 

research techniques such as CD-scan, NMR, the availability of 

psychiatric consultation and treatment services is a must in 

any comprehensive strategy against AIDS. 

We don’t need to remind the honorable Commission of 

the fact that oftentimes it is precisely through the neurop- 

sychiatric evaluation that we can detect early subtle signs 

and symptoms of the disease. 

Our AIDS patients deserve the benefit of-- 

VICE CHAIRMAN ROGERS: Dr. Llado, you are running 

past your time. I am pleased that we have your written 

statement, so if you could conclude quickly. 

DR. LLADO: Lastly, we would like to place our 

opposition on the record to the rather hysterical and 

desperate local government efforts to try to impose mandatory 

testing in Puerto Rico. We think this is absolutely wrong, 

and we substantiate our position in the position paper we 

have submitted. 

Thank you. 

[Applause. ] 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Thank you. 

Evelyn Rosado, Director of Health Education for the 
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Puerto Rico Department of Education. 

MS. ROSADO [Interpreted from Spanish]: An education 
eo 

  

project on AIDS was incorporated into the health program for 

the school year 1987-88. In the first stage of the project 
| 

and in coordination with the Latin American Center for 

  

  

isors of 

  

public health and school nurses. These two groups constitute 

the orientation staff for teachers in the 100 school centers 

for the education system. 

The second phase of the project is adoption of a 

curriculum. Since 1988, we have started development of 

curriculum material, and we have prepared materials from 

kindergarten through the twelfth grade. To enrich this 

material, we have acquired films, videotapes, and books and 

pamphlets for teachers. 

The impact of this project since 1988 to date is 

710,864 students from kindergarten through the twelfth grade, 
(RR can 

and 15,400 teachers. During the school year 1989-90, we 

impacted at the elementary level 49 percent of the student 

population and 50 percent at the intermediate level, the high 

school level. 

The public policy of the Education Department, 
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dated April 13, 1988, guarantees the right of any child who 

is infected with HIV or diagnosed with AIDS to receive 

educational services. 

The projections of the Education Department for this 

year are: to offer special assistance to two educational 

regions which impact less than 50 percent; to prepare a 

manual and follow-up activities for eighth, ninth, tenth, and 

eleventh grades; to offer a workshop for teachers at the 

higher education levels, and to update public policy. 

Thank you. 

(Applause. ] 

MS. VALENTINE [phonetic] [Interpreted from Spanish]: 

I am Marie Valentine. I am supervisor of a health zone, and 

I am in charge of Rio Piedras Health Zone 5, in which we are 

implementing the public policy because we have two schools 

that have children with AIDS. This is confidential, and for 

that reason we cannot say how many children we have. But 

what we want to tell you is that we are dealing with the 

|teachers; we are giving them orientation, especially in 

sexual education, so that although children at this age do 

not have sexual relations, they may be protected from touch-- 

we tell them the acceptable touch and the unacceptable touch. 
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We have materials for all grades from kindergarten to grade 

12. 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ [Interpreted from Spanish): 

Thank you very much. If you will give us that material, it 

will become part of the Commission’s record. Thank you. 

Dr. Jose Carrasquillo is next, from the Puerto Rico 

Corrections Administration, where he is the Medical Director; 

then Carlos Castro and Mr. Velez. 

DR. CARRASQUILLO: Good morning. I am Dr. Jose 

Carrasquillo, Medical Advisor to the Administration of 

Corrections. Dr. Ramos [phonetic], Administrator of Correc- 

tions, has asked me to indicate to the distinguished members 

of the National Commission on AIDS to excuse her for not 

being here today. She had a prior invitation for a special 

activity with the Governor of Puerto Rico in a beautiful town 

in the western area of our island. 

Also, she was not officially invited for these 

hearings. She indicated in writing her viewpoints regarding 

the Correction Administration, intervention, coordination, 

caring, understanding and love to inmate patients or convicts 

suffering from HIV or AIDS. 

On her behalf and mine, we appreciate your attention 
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and collaboration with the Puerto Rican Society regarding the 

suffering of citizens with this condition in the States and 

Puerto Rico. 

Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Thank you very much. 

Danny Velez? 

MR. VELEZ [Interpreted from Spanish]: Good 

afternoon. My name is Danny Velez, and I am a consultant in 

strategies of communication. 

Yesterday and this morning, you have been witness 

to the problems existing in Puerto Rico in relation to AIDS. 

We are all aware that we have to do something soon for those 

who are infected and those who are at risk of being infected. 

The most important thing that I wish to bring 

before you for consideration briefly is the need and impor- 

tance of creating in Puerto Rico as quickly as possible a 

massive campaign of education. Under these circumstances, I 

request that this Commission request the Congress of the 

United States and the President of the United States to 

assign emergency funds for the people of Puerto Rico for a 

massive campaign to prevent this illness that is affecting us 

so much. 
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Thank you. 

[Applause. ] 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Thank you. 

Carlos Castro. 

MR. CASTRO [Interpreted from Spanish]: Good 

afternoon. My name is Carlos Castro. I am a person with 

AIDS. 

I wish this morning only briefly to tell you the 

experience that I have gone through, the rejection and the 

discrimination experienced by me in hospitals here in Puerto 

Rico. The year 1988 went by, and it still happens with a 

lot of persons here in Puerto Rico who are AIDS patients--in 

the offices of Government, also. When you present yourself 

as a person with AIDS, they put you aside, and you have to 

wait. When I went to ask for services, I had to look for my 

sister to go with me because they did not allow me to go into 

the social services office. This is happening here in Puerto 

Rico. 

I am a volunteer in the AIDS Foundation, and I 

volunteer in other organizations here in Puerto Rico. I 

Support everyone with AIDS and the families of those persons. 

What has enraged me more is that not even after 
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death are we safe from discrimination against us; after you 

are dead, the discrimination continues, not only with us but 

with our relatives. 

What I am asking is that I would like the Foundation 

on AIDS, as their client and as a volunteer--we have helped a 

lot of people, and we are continuing to do that--but the 

funds we have are not enough for so many patients here in 

Puerto Rico, and we really need your help, because here the 

Government of Puerto Rico is not doing anything. 

Thank you. 

(Applause. J 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Thank you. 

Delia Sanchez. 

MS. SANCHEZ {Interpreted from Spanish]: Good 

morning. My name is Delia Sanchez. I am a businesswoman and 

mother of three children. 

I lost only four months ago a child, and I have a 

message. Number one, to the patients: Have faith and hope. 

Do not give up when the doctor gives you a diagnosis. Look 

for alternatives. There are rights that all patients should 

explore. Governmental agencies, hospitals and insurance 

companies are exposed to a lot of risk of malpractice, but no 
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patient should be denied the right to be hospitalized and not 

be discriminated against. I have to mention the case of my 

son. The Presbyterian Hospital threw him on the floor of the 

emergency room, and his doctor when he was called did not 

come to resolve the problem that night. 

To the medical clients, I say, like Dr. Siegel 

[phonetic]: Love, medicine and miracles. Never should you 

Say there is nothing else to be done. The doctor should be 

the last one to lose hope. Don’t be so logical; do not throw 

away alternatives. For the good of the patient, unite to 

search for solutions to this great ill. 

And lastly, to the Government, especially the 

Department of Health: Remember that you have a commitment 

with the health professionals and with the population in 

general to [inaudible] the hospitals, the doctors, the 

emergency rooms for the rejection and maltreatment of 

patients, that this should not be tolerated. Listen to the 

complaints, and act upon these complaints. Do not allow that 

Many profit from pain and suffering and the loss of hope of 

the people affected. 

Health service is not a privilege; it is a right. 

It is a right, and I tell the Government we should not 
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tolerate these abuses. We hope that you act. 

Thank you. 

{Applause. ] 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Thank you. 

Ms. Serrano. 

MS. SERRANO: Good morning. I am a woman affected 

by AIDS. My husband is an AIDS patient. But after we cried 

after the initial news, we decided not to faint in the day of 

adversity, and we founded the Association of Relatives and 

Friends of AIDS Patients. 

If AIDS is not a civil rights problem, then why was 

it necessary that we go to court in order to open our 10-bed 

hospice which we opened recently in Luquillo? It is. So we 

are happy that we finally opened our hospice, and we are 

operating, with only half of our budget. CBOs like ours need 

the funds to give the services patients need. 

I also want to add that all of our members are also 

T3S2 members of the ELISA [inaudible] Puerto Rico, and we emphasize 

that funds are desperately needed. 

[Applause. ] 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Glorin? 

MS. MARTIN [Interpreted from Spanish}: Good 
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afternoon. I am Glorin Martin, and I work in the [inaudible] 

Jesus, which is a place where we provide basic services to 

homeless people.. 

As you know, many of these people without homes are 

also AIDS patients. For them, the reality that we have heard 

here is complicated because they have no facilities where 

they can be treated. 

We would like to present the reality of the people 

with AIDS. Once they have been infected, we have found many 

people who visit our facilities who don’t have a place to go 

or to sleep until they are dying. In Puerto Rico, there are SEEN REO EMS 

facilities where they can _go, but they have to be dying in 
  

MILLER REPORTING CO., INC.     
order to be admitted. 
a 
  

At the same time, there are other facilities, but 

they must be drug addicts and be willing to enter rehabilita- 

tion programs in order to be admitted to those centers. 

However, there are people who are not drug addicts, 

and who_have AIDS and who _ are     
streets, without any type of attention. We are concerned. 

a 

We need to have a place where they can come. We know that it 
  

is a health problem to have the hygienic facilities. We 
a 

would like to suggest as an alternative to develop in the 
-- 

- —CSCCiCtiz(‘(s«s(idé(wy   

   



  WILLER REPORTING CO., INC 

$07 C Street, N.E. 

Washington, D.C. 20002 

(202) 346-6666     

153 

community centers a place where they can take a bath, because 

it is so important for people with AIDS that they be able to 

wash their ulcers and their wounds, because they multiple 

when they are living on the streets. This would allow them 

to live with some dignity until they find a solution for them 

so they can treated. 

Thank you. 

[Applause.] 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Thank you. I congratulate you. 

Dr. Castano? 

DR. CASTANO: Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen. 

My name is Rafael Rivera Castano, and I am professor of 

epidemiology at the School of Public Health at the University 

of Puerto Rico Medical Sciences Campus. 

In the brief moment I have, I just want to tell you 

that I am going to prepare a written position paper that will 

be sent to you in the next few days. I am very much concerned 

at the way this meeting has been organized, that you are not 

getting the whole picture of the AIDS problem in Puerto Rico. 

Specifically, I am very much concerned because 

there has been no official position of the University of 

Puerto Rico during these two days, and I hope through my 
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presentation to express to you the role that I think the 

University of Puerto Rico should have in the training of 

professionals in the epidemiological and sociological 

research on HIV infection in Puerto Rico and in the establish- 

ing of public policy in the island. After ten years of the 

epidemic, we still lack a public policy that is really 

consistent with the real problem in Puerto Rico. 

Thank you very much. | 

[Applause. ] 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Thank you. 

Judith Rosy. 

MS. ROSY [Interpreted from Spanish]: Good after- 

noon, everyone. I am Judith Rosy. I am the founder of the 

Mision Cristiane Hospice, which is a program for addicts and 

alcoholics. We are located on a farm, and we were founded in 

1966. 

Four years ago, when the young people started to get 

sick, we had to prepare a provisional hospice because they 

had no families. They were treated in the area hospital in 

{inaudible], but they were returned to our place, so we had 

to prepare this hospice. 

We almost always have 35 or 40 cases which are 
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AIDS-positive. The social services program donated $40,000 

for a building which is being constructed. We have annexed 

that to another building to expand our facilities and improve 

the services of physicians and nurses who treat these 

patients. 

In regard to the issue of conditionality that I 

have indicated, as the director of a program, I have to deai 

with the wives, the sweethearts, the girlfriends and all the 

relatives of these patients, and because of the confidential 

aspect that we have, we have not been able to tell the truth 

to these people about the patients. This has brought trauma 

to me, knowing that there are many girls who have married 

these youngsters, and I have not been able to tell them the 

truth. We must bring this to the legislature to do something, 

because this disease is being propagated, and it has to do 

|partially with the confidential aspect of the disease. 

[Applause. ] 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Thank you. 

Luzie de Muniz. 

MRS. DE MUNIZ [Interpreted from Spanish]: Thank 

you, and good morning. Although I can give my statement in 

English, I think I am going to give it in Spanish because I 
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think I can put my heart out better in my own language. 

My name is Luzie G. de Muniz, wife of 46 years and 

| hoping for more. I am the mother of nine children, one of 

them adopted, and I am the grandmother of 18 grandchildren. 

| I am a citizen who is concerned for my family and for the 

| families of all Puerto Ricans. 

I come here today to defend the life of a young 

mother who has honored me with her friendship. I hope that 

by defending her life I will be able to defend the lives of 

many girls under the same circumstances. 

This young woman is 33 years of age. Three months 

| after birth, she was found in a community of the island where 

they say that the Virgin Mary appeared. She had no iden- 

tification. She was taken to a hospice for girls, and she 

lived there for 12 years. Some people who took affection for 

her adopted her, and she was dreaming of love, affection, a 

home, and a family, but awakened to the sad reality that what 

these people were in fact seeking was a maid. 

When she was 13 years of age, a member of the 

family raped her, and she had to be hospitalized. Because 

she told the truth and they found the man guilty, she was 

thrown out of the house. 
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She worked wherever she could--family homes, 

businesses, et cetera--and at the same time, she studied and 

was able to graduate from high school. She is an intelligent 

and well-developed person who has the facility to express 

herself. She has three children. The oldest girl and the 

first child are healthy. The third child is five years old. 

His father was a drug addict who contaminated her, the 

mother, and she transmitted this to the child. To complicate 

things even more, the girl is RH-negative type of blood. Her 

husband mistreated her, abused her physically-- 

VICE CHAIRMAN ROGERS: Luzie, to my sorry, you will 

have to conclude fairly quickly. 

MRS. DE MUNIZ: Oh, please, please-- 

VICE CHAIRMAN ROGERS: We must be fair to all those 

who wish to speak. 

MRS. DE MUNIZ: I know, but I have been here two 

days, listening to everybody. And when I spoke with Mr. 

Carlton Lee in the office of Ms. Byrnes in Washington, he 

told me that I was the first person who called to speak as a 

citizen. And I am not going to leave this place until you 

listen to my statement. I am going to finish in a little 

while, just about three minutes more. 
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VICE CHAIRMAN ROGERS: Please go ahead. We just 

want to try and be fair to the whole group. We know how hard 

all of you have worked on this. 

MRS. DE MUNIZ: Oh, yes, I will go ahead. Thank 

you very much. 

CHAIRMAN OSBORN: As I mentioned, Luzie, we have 

many groups that have worked very hard as well-- 

MRS. DE MUNIZ: I know, I know, but when I spoke to 

Mr. Carlton Lee, he told me I was the first person, so I 

should have been the first person to talk here. 

CHAIRMAN OSBORN: Finish your statement as quickly 

as you can, if you would, please. 

MRS. DE MUNIZ [Interpreted from Spanish]: Her 

husband mistreated her physically, and she was desperate and 

fearing for her life, and had to leave the husband. 

She now lives with a many who loves her in spite of 

everything. He takes care of the three children. I was able 

to see that he treats her well. 

There is talk about AIDS in this family, and they 

speak of it as a reality of life, this mother of three 

children and her young partner who does not want to abandon 

her. The sick treatment is receiving treatment for his 
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condition. He appears to be healthy, but not the mother. 

She cannot receive preventive treatment because the policies 

in our country establish it that way. Only AIDS patients who 

have symptoms are included. If she were to live in the 

United States, she would be able to receive treatment with 

her Medicaid card. It is not that way in Puerto Rico, and 

this is discrimination. If somebody has a better word, 

please correct me. This is not a fair situation for this 

young mother and for many others. 

That is why I am here. I ask--rather, I demand-- 

that these regulations be reviewed and if necessary changed. 

If the amount of AZT available is not sufficient for all AIDS 

patients, it must be sufficient to take care of the thousands 

of young mothers who need it, even though they don’t have the 

obvious symptoms. This should be done as a prevention 

measure. 

For many centuries our society has discriminated 

against women, and I say it has been long enough. 

I talk about my friend to show that this is the 

}worst type of discrimination. She has not been given A2T, 

and in that way they are condemning her to a rapid death. It 

is our obligation to help her as my family has helped her; we 
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have adopted her. 

I propose and I expect that the people of Puerto 

Rico who can listen to my testimony devote part of their time 

| to support a family, to adopt a family. Many of us can do it. 

Thank you very much. 

{Applause. ] 

DR. DAVID: Good afternoon. My name is Dr. Emilio 

David, and I am the President of the Puerto Rico Public 

Health Association. I would just express my regret that this 

Commission did not deem it necessary or important enough to 

hear our opinions. 

Thank you very much. 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Thank you. 

Carlos Hernandez and Joey Pons are the last persons 

to participate. 

DR. HERNANDEZ-BADA: Good afternoon. My name is 

Carlos Hernandez-Bada. I am a doctor, and I have worked for 

the past two years with patients with AIDS. 

There are many agencies here in San Juan that are 

working with AIDS patients, and this many times results in 

duplication of services; however, we are lacking others. 

Many times, the patients get tested and open their records, 

  
   



  

ah 

$07 C Sueet, NE 

Washington, D.C 20002 

(202) $46-6666   MILLER REPORTING CO., INC. 

161 

and the same day they go to another institution, and they do 

the same thing at the other institution. So what happens-- 

many things are duplicated. 

However, first-line medications, 50 percent of the 

time are not available. Some patients have waited two or ar 

three weeks or two or three months for AZT, and as you have 

  

  

seen here, the mother very naively mentioned, "AZT--why?" 
Senne. 

because she felt very well. Maybe she had never had CD4. 

To end, I will say the patients just wait too long. 

It is very painful. At the end of many weeks, I only have one 

bed and ten patients to be hospitalized. Many times, I have 

had to complete death certificates for many of them. 

All the institutions are working, and I recommend 

that they group together, all of these institutions that are 

working well here in the metropolitan area, and join within 

one institution--not to close them, but that they integrate 

into one organization so that we have no duplicity of 

services and better treatment is given. 

Thank you. 

[Applause. ] 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Thank you. 

Joey?     
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MR. PONS [phonetic]: Good afternoon. My name is 

Joey Pons. I am a Puerto Rican, a homosexual, and a person 

with ARC. I am here to express my anger at the fact that gay 

issues had no place in these hearings, although we make up a 

big part of the communities devastated by this pandemic. 

It is shameful, disgraceful and outrageous that the 

facts regarding AIDS and gay men in Puerto Rico had to be 

brought up by an individual in the public comments section. 

Gays with AIDS in Puerto Rico die secluded and e 

  

ee 

marginated, not only because they have AIDS but because they 
oe —— 

  

are homosexuals. This has got to stop. 
——_— 

We are here, we are queer, and we will not under 

any circumstances die in silence. Get used to it, Puerto 

Rico. 

[Applause. ] 

COMMISSIONER DIAZ: Thank you, all of you. 

CHAIRMAN OSBORN: On behalf of the Commission, let 

me express our appreciation for your understanding of the 

kind of schedule that we need to compress such important 

feelings into and for your patience with us. We have had a 

very important pair of sessions here, and we look forward to 

getting a chance to see more of the problems and the efforts 
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at solutions this afternoon. It was because of that, as I 

mentioned, that we needed to compress the public comment 

time, and I am very grateful to you for having worked so hard 

| to do so. 

On behalf of the Commission, many thanks. 

(Whereupon, at 12:55 p.m., the proceedings were 

concluded. ] 

  
   



  

  

Puerto Rico 
Community 
Foundation 

Fundacién de Puerto Rico 
  

MEMORANDUM 

TO : The National Commission on AIDS 
ATTN : Maureen Byrnes 

Dr. Helen Rodriguez Trias 

Flue Ri a\ Betanton 
FROM ; Ethel Rios de Betancourt, Ph.D. 

President 

DATE : November 26, 1990 

RE : The Puerto Rico Community Foundation 
AIDS Projects 

The Puerto Rico Community Foundation at present is sponsoring 
five AIDS projects as listed in the following page. Three of these 
projects are prevention and education oriented, particularly, 
directed toward adolescents. Another one supports a hospice for 
terminal patients with AIDS, and the fifth one is a Stop AIDS 

program operated in collaboration with the Fundacion SIDA and 
backed with the grant of the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation. 

We would appreciate it if this information would form part of 
your record of organizations in Puerto Rico which sponsor AIDS 
projects. 

hma 

Enciosure 

SUITE 1417 ¢ ROYAL BANK CENTER, HATO REY, P. R. 00917 © TELS. (809) 751-3822 - 751-3885 © FAX (809) 751-3297 
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(for the record) t-a8-40 
AIDS Projects supported by the Puerto Rico Community Foundation 

  

Puerto Rico Planned Parenthood Association 
AIDS Education for Adolescents Years funded: 1 

Grant: $25,000 

A peer counséling model in which 45 teenagers trained in 
responsible parenthood, human sexuality, sexually transmitted 
diseases and AIDS serve as peer counselors in public schools, urban 
housing projects and colleges, reaching aproximately 1,600 persons. 
The project has been recommended to PRCF's Board of Directors for 
a second year grant of $15,000. 

Asociacion de Familiares y Amigos de Pacientes con Sida 
Hospice for Terminal Patients with AIDS Years Funded: 1 

Grant: $37,700 

A shelter where terminal patients with AIDS receive medical, 
psychological, social and spiritual services until their death. 

Nu Sigma Beta Fraternity 
AIDS Prevention Project for Adolescents Years funded: 1 

Grant: $28,928 

An educational program addressed at preventing the incidence of 
AIDS among high-risk adolescents from twelve to sixteen years old 
in two high schools in San Juan, through the development of the 
skills needed to avoid the high-risk behavior associated with this 
disease. 

AIDS Foundation 
Stop AIDS Program Years funded: 3 

Grant: $353,707 

A restricted grant from the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation to 
develop a program aimed at preventing the spread of AIDS among 
homosexual and bisexual men in Puerto Rico, focusing on the 
education of safe sexual practices. It is expected that, during the 
three years of its donation, the program will impact between 4,000 
and 5,000 individuals. 

The American Red Cross, Puerto Rico Chapter 
“AIDS: A talk with the people't Years funded: 1 

Grant: 49,000 

A community education project on AIDS prevention through the 
development and offering of a course in 1,109 communities island- 
wide. 

| 
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Presentation to the National Commission on AIDS 
by Eunice Diaz 

San Juan, Puerto Rico 
November 28, 1990 

My fellow Commissioners, Dr. Mason and Dr. Novello. In order to 

hear from the people of Puerto Rico I would like to take this 
opportunity to share only thought with you and make a few brief 
recommendations. 

As a matter of background, let me remind you that I too, as Dr. 

Ken Castro said yesterday, as a puertorican professional working 
and living on the mainland during the first ten years of the HIV 
epidemic, come before you with an intense feeling of emotion, 

passion, pain and devotion to the issues which have been 

discussed during this hearing. 

Little did I realize 10 years ago that Hispanics would be so 

disproportionately impacted by the HIV epidemic, and that among 

the Hispanic subgroups puertoricans would become the group most 

severely impacted. 

Approximately 3 years ago I began to work with others to identify 
and bring together interested and involved Latino professionals 
and expertise that could be brought together to discuss issues 
related to the rapid progression of HIV among Hispanics and 
alternative responses to the epidemic. 

Toward this end we organized a first national conference on 
Latinos and AIDS in Los Angeles, California in early 1987 with 
over 100 participants discussing prevention and education, 
service organizations and delivery of care, legal & advocacy 
issues, and media communications. 

Participants worked in multidisplay teams for two days and 
developed specific agendas and recommendations which needed 
local, regional and federal attention. Perhaps the greatest 
value of this meeting was the cross fertilization and sharing of 
ideas, programs, model interventions and evaluation strategies 
from professionals, «ae and peers. 

At that time I convened a small group of peopie, primarily 
puertorican professionals from both the island and mainland to 
discuss the need to gage in a more meaningful discussion on 
issues related to AIDS in Puerto Rico and on the mainland. 

With the help and support from Dr. Mason, Dr. Allen and Dr. $- 
thse we held a Think Tank I in Washington, DC in August 1989 
with the following objectives. 

1) To better understand two factors contributing to such a 
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high incidence of AIDS in Puerto Rico. 

2) To provide a forum for the sharing of knowledge, 
experience, and expertise about HIV. 

3) To develop and strengthen ongoing networks. 

4) To explore the need for collaboration in the development 
of a comprehensive and coordinated of AIDS care. 

I will summarize the salient points of this forun. 

Read if time 

This past August we held Think Tank II here in Puerto Rico to 
focus on care and Rx issues and the organization and delivery of 
AIDS care. Over 130 professionals participated and a core set of 
recommendations developed as a result of this second Think Tank. 

From the experience of having been a driving force for these 
three meetings and having the privilege in 1987 of being a 
consultant to the Department of Health in the development of the 
HRSA AIDS service demonstration program, and working extensively 
with puertorican populations on the mainland heavily impacted by 
HIV, whether in New York, New Jersey, Connecticut, Florida and 
Illinois, I respectfully submit to you the following observation, 
"The tremendous challenge of AIDS in Puerto Rico can never he 
successfully dealt with until the corresponding attention is 
given to HIV within the puertorican populations on the mainland. 
It is not possible to fully address the AIDS epidemic among 
puertoricans unless the implications of rhe circular migration 
pattern - ht rte , Lohudds, Heat? Ly freon Veo PrlnS o- 
“the dented! aw Lente ‘ 

Also the "coming home" phenomenon may be greater here in Puerto 
Rico than anywhere else in the United States due to many 
sociological factors and individual and family needs. The 
following represent in a nutshell six recommendations I offer to 
you my fellow Commissioners from my perspective and worked on 
many of these issue for the past 4 years. 

1. I recommend strongly that this Commission urge that Congress 
direct a study to include a comprehensive view of the 
organization and delivery of health care in Puerto Rico, in 

of the current and projected impact of the HIV epidemic 
as well as the health status of puertorican populations who 
migrate back and forth from the island and mainland. The 
uniqueness of the political status, the patterns of migration of 
our people, the rapid spread and modes of transmission of HIV and 
the ability and limitations of federal, state and local care 
systems to respond to the serious challenges facing our 
population, demand that this special attention be given at this 
time. 

  
 



President - 1982 Senator Inouye from Hawaii request similar be 
done. 

2. Development of a clear statement by the government of Puerto 
Rico of what is required or desired in terms of federal technical 
assistance. May mean up and down assistance. 

3. Continue work toward broadening agenda of inclusion and 
involvement cooperation collaboration and true partnership with 
churches, private sector, pharmaceuticals and voluntary 
organizations and CBO's. It is urgent that CB response be an 

and important voice throughout our play. 

4. Support efforts for continued dialogue between island and 
mainland professionals, peers and organizations and funding 
agencies. 

5. Prioritize the development of a pilot system of case 
management linking the island and the NE mainland emphasizing 
continuity of care and appropriate patient/family followup and 
referral. 

6. Lastly, give upmost priority and attention to developing the 
infrastructure for preparing for receiving and being eligible to 
complete Ryan White monies. It is my sincere recommendation to 
the various involved that a clear demonstration to 
ourselves and others of new, creative, truly collaborative maybe 

never tried before" negotiations in good faith can at this 
critical time be far more productive and do most benefit for 
those whom this legislation is to impact. 

I am proud to be a partner with you in these efforts and with 
many in the audience who have served as an inspiration and 
support to my continued involvement in this epidemic. 

  
 



  

  

Buenos dfas sefnoras 
: sefiores. AMttnrs ~ 

Soy Luzie Garcia de la Noceda de Mufiiz, esposa, madre de nueve 

hijos y abuela de dieciocho nietos. Soy una ciudadana preocupada 

por mi familia y por la familia de todos los puertorriquefios. Hoy 

vengo aqui a defender la vida de una joven madre que me honra con 

su amistad. Espero que defendiendo su vida, logre defender la vida 

de muchas en las mismas circunstancias. 

Esta joven mujer tiene treinta y tres afios. A los tres meses 

de nacida, fue encontrada abandonada en una comunidad de la isla 

donde decfan que se apareci6é la Virgen. No tenia identificaci6n 

alguna. Fue llevada al Hogar Insular de Nifios, y alli vivi6 doce 

afios. Unas personas dicen encarifiarse con ella, y es adoptada. 

Suefia con amor, hogar, familia para despertar a la triste realidad 

de que estas personas lo que buscaban era servicio doméstico. A 

los trece afios, un miembro de la familia la viola. Tiene que ser 

hospitalizada. Porque dice la verdad, y encuentran al hombre cul- 

pable, la echan de la casa. Trabaja donde puede: casas de familia, 

comercios, etc., y, a la vez, estudia y logra graduarse de la escuela 

superior. Por su tes6n e inteligencia, se desarrolla en una joven de 

buenas maneras, voz pausada y una facilidad de palabra que envidiarfian 

muchos politicos. 

Tiene tres hijos. La nifia mayor y el primer hijo son saludables. 

No tiene tanta suerte el tercero de cinco afios. Su padre, un droga- 

dicto, ha contaminado a su madre con el virus del SIDA, y ella se lo 

pasa al nifio, Para complicar las cosas, la sangre de la madre es 

RH negativo AB. Su esposo la maltrataba fisicamente por lo cual ella, 

desesperada y temiendo por su vida y la de sus hijos, lo abandona. 

(e 
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Hoy, vive con un compafiero que a pesar de todo la quiere y le 

da apoyo. Cuida de los tres nifios, y pude constatar que con mucho 

amor. En esta familia se habla del SIDA y de la muerte como se habla 

de otras realidades de la vida. Una madre de tres hijos y su joven 

compafiero que no quiere abandonarlos, enfrentan el terror diario de 

perder sus seres queridos. 

El nifio enfermo est4 recibiendo tratamiento para su condicién. 

El se ve saludable; no asi su madre. No puede recibir tratamiento 

preventivo pues las politicas de nuestro pais asf lo establecen. 

S6lo los enfermos de SIDA que presentan sintomas, son incluidos en 

los programas. Si viviera en los Estados Unidos, podria recibir 

tratamiento con su tarjeta de Medicaid. No asi en Puerto Rico. 

Esto es discriminaci6n. Si alguien tiene una palabra mejor, que me 

corrija. Esta situaci6én no es justa. No es justa para esta joven 

madre, ni para tantas otras. 

Estoy aqui, hoy, por eso. Pido, o mejor dicho, exijo que 

estas regulaciones sean revisadas y, si necesario, cambiarlas. Si 

la cantidad de AZT disponible no es suficiente para atender todos 

los pacientes de SIDA, debe haber suficiente para atender los casos 

de miles de mujeres-madres que lo necesitan, aGn cuando no presenten 

sintomas. 

Nuestra sociedad, por muchos siglos, ha discriminado contra la 

mujer. Yo digo, basta. Considero esto que le pasa a mi amiga como 

una de las peores formas de discrimen. No administrarle la AZT 

preventiva, la esta privando de un tiempo precioso para poder cuidar 

de sus hijos y disfrutar de una vida mejor. Estamos condenandola a 

una muerte segura y demasiado pronto. Es obligacién de todos nosotros 

ayudarla. Muchas gracias. (? 

  
 



TOMMY MUNIZ 
Apartado 8302 

Santurce, Puerto Rico 00910 

20 de novienbre de 1990 

Sr. Teodoro Vidal 
Calle Encamacién 1573 
Caparra Heights, PR 00920 

Estimado sefior Vidal: 

Son las cinco de la mafiana. Estoy desvelada. La noche anterior, leo el arti- 

culo publicado el 25 de octubre de 1990 en el "San Juan Star", escrito por 

Betsy Lépez Abrahams, sobre sus suefios destrozados. (Acostumbro a guardar los 

periédicos cuando tengo que ausentamme de la Isla para repasarlos a mi llegada.) 

En esta ocasién, estuve fuera tres semanas acompafiando a mi esposo Tomy a 

filmar una pelicula en Hollywood. Nuestro pueblo es ingrato con muchos de los 

que lo quieren mucho. Me duele pensar que no los haya podido realizar. 

La tarde del sSbado, he almorzado con Myriam. Ella también, tiene suenos 

destrozados. A los tres meses de nacida, la encontrarm envuelta en una saba- 

nita cerca de donde, seg(m dice, aparecfa una Virgen en Arecibo, hace quizas 

treinta afios. No conocié madre, padre ni hermanos. Vivié en el Hogar Insular 

de Nifias en Trujillo Alto por doce afios. Alli, uma sefiora dice que se encarin6 

con ella, y la “adopt6". Vive el suefio de ser amada para despertar a la realidad 

de la vida. La adopciém es buscando una sirvienta, El cufiado de la sefiora la 

viola, tan brutalmente, a los trece afios, que tiene que ser llevada al hospital. 

Porque dice la verdad, y el hombre es encontrado culpable, la madre adoptiva la 

rechaza y la echa a la calle. 

Ahi, hace de todo. Trabaja donde puede, y trata de continuar sus estudios. 

Termina su escuela superior a duras penas. Es brillente. Aprovecha su tiempo 

en la escuela, y, por su inteligencia y tes&n, desarrolla ua facilidad de 

palabra, que ya quisieran muchos politicos. Tiene ua hija de doce afios que 

no ha conocido a su padre. Se casa luego, y tiene dos nifios. El primero, tiene 

la suerte de nacer antes de que su padre, adicto a drogas, le pase el virus a su 

madre. El segundo, no tiene tanta suerte, igual que Myriam, tiene el HIV 

positivo. 

Se establece um movimiento en Puerto Rico en el Departamento de Salud para 

a los enfermos de SIDA. Su nene cualifica, y est& bajo tratamiento. 

Con él, no tiene "preocupaciones", aparte de que sabe que puede morir en cual- 

quier momento. No asi ella. No tiene recursos econémicos, y al hacer el 

escopido de los enfermos sin recursos a tratarse, ella no tiene la suerte de 

ser inclufda. La lista, da la casualidad, no incliye a ninguna mujer. El 

tratamiento por un doctor privado ascenderfia a unos cientos de délares 

mensuales. ; 

  
 



Sr. Teodoro Vidal 
Pagina 2 
20 de noviembre de 1990 

Fn Puerto Rico no se le d& tratamiento con las drogas establecidas al enfermo 

de SIDA hasta que no presenta sintamas. iQue ley estGpida: ISi presenta 

sintomas, tiene una sentencia de muerte! Hasta ahora, no ha presentado ninguo, 

excepto que tiene cinco de hemoglobina. Tiene una mela dafiada, hace tres 

semanas, que no la deja tranquila. Ning(m dentista se expone a extraerla en 

su condicifm. Una amiga mia y yo, pensamos que vamos a hacer algo. Conseguir 

unas transfusiones de sangre o algo. Su sangre es de un tipo bien raro, RH 

negativo AB, bien dificil de conseguir. 

Le cuento todo esto porque pienso que sus suefios y los de Myriam podrian unirse, 

y convertirse en una linda historia de amor. Su museo podria ser un museo vi- 

viente. Podriams, usted, Jack Delano y Jaime Suérez, idear alguna solucitn. 

Esos santos, tallados con tanto amor por manos puertorriquefias , podrian -con el 

mismo amor- tallar otra vida para muchas Myriams. No podemos curar a todos los 

enfermos de SIDA pero podemes tratar de curar a Myriam. Puede pensar que mi 

idea es descabéllada. No me estarfa malo. Mi abuela decfa que la peor gestifm 

es la que no se hace. 

Si. quiere commicarse conmigo, puede hacerlo para decixme lo que quiera, hasta 

que soy est(@pida. S6lo m mueve el amr y la compasiMm. Mi familia y yo, hemos 

"adoptado" a la familia de Myriam. La ayudamos en lo que podemos. Le damos 

amor, carifio y ayuda econémica pero necesitamos otros que también lo hagan. 

Por favor, commiquese conmigo. 

Con todo mi respeto, 

hye Whe Mn-3 
Luzie G. de Mimiz 

PD: Myriam, no es su verdadero nombre. 

ce: Jack Delano 
Manny Suarez 
Jaime Suarez 
Dr. José Soler Zapata 
Dra. Antonia C. de Novello 
Dr. Pedro A. Borras 
Maureen Bymes 
Betsy Lépez 
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HEMATOLOGY SERVICE 
P.R. HEREDITARY DISEASE PROGRAM 
UNIVERSITY PEDIATRIC HOSPITAL 
G.P.Q. BOX 5067, SAN JUAN, P.R. 00936 

FAX 

TO ? Mrs. Patrician Randal, National Comm. on AIDS, Washington, D.C. 

FAX # + (202) 254-3060 

FROM : Dr. Pedro J. Santiago Borrero 
Director, Pediatric Hemophilia Program 
and P.R. Hereditary Disease Program 

FAX £*809~751-5812 

DATE : December 7, 1990 

RE > Delivery of Health Care to Hemophilia Patients 
and Relationship to HIV Disease in Puerto Rico 

RE 

#OF PAGES: 6 
(Including Transmittal sheet) 
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, HIPOTIROIDISMO 

PROGRAMA DE ENFERMEDADES 
HEREDITARIAS DE PUERTO RICO 

DEPARTAMENTO PEDIATRIA, ESCUELA DE MEDICINA 

HOSPITAL PEDIATRICO UNIVERSITARIO 

  

  

PRUEBAS RECINTO CIENCIAS MEDICAS U.P.R. 
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& 
FENILCETONURIA 

  

CENTRO MEDICO 
DE PUERTO RICO 
TEL 744-7410 

December 7, 1990 

Mrs. Patricia Randal 
National Commission on AIDS 

Washington, D.C. 

Dear Mrs. Randal: 

Enclosed please find fax of the presentation that I intended to 

submit to the National AIDS Commission in the hearings celebrated in 

San Juan, P.R. on November 27-28, 1990. 

The subcriber is the director of the Puerto Rico Pediatric Hemo- 

philia Program, which provides care to about 95% of all hemophiliacs 

below 18 years of age on the island. Unfortunately, I was out of 

Puerto Rico, and thus I was not able to address the Commission in that 

occasion. 

Responding to the request made by the Commission, I hereby sub- 

mit a Report on HIV Infection Among Hemophilia Patients in Puerto Rico. 

I also direct a Project on Newborn HIV Seroprevalence in San Juan 

and nearby towns, sponsored by the Department of Health of Puerto Rico 

and CDC. A copy of the report of that survey is also included, which 

contains very recent (and disturbing) information. 

I hope that this information is useful to the National AIDS 

Commission. Thank you for your attention. 

Singegely yours, 

| 
\ 

2A} 
Pedro J. 

Director, 

and P.R. Hereditary Disease Program 
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tiago Borrerd, M.D. 

frs 

ediatric-Hemophilia Program 
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DELIVERY OF HEALTH CARE TO HEMOPHILIA PATIENTS 
AND RELATIONSHIP TO HIV DISEASE IN PUERTO RICO 

- Presentation in Public Hearings of the National 

Commission on AIDS, San Juan, PR, November 27, 1990. 

  

Introduction 

I would like to express my appreciation for the opportunity to address 

the National Commission on AIDS in it's visit to Puerto Rico, by means of 

this report. 

Due to existing time limits and to the fact that other presenters have 

discussed general aspects of AIDS and HIV infection in Puerto Rico, I will 

restrict my presentation to the description of the health care given to and 

needs of hemophilia patients, especially of those with HIV infection. 

Assuming that the prevalence rate of hemophilia and related bleeding di- 

sorders (RD) in Puerto Rico is similar to that in other Western Countries, we 

would expect about 300 patients with these diseases on the Island. This es- 

timate is similar to the number of 278 cases found recently by the local 

chapter of the Hemophilia Foundation. 

Right now, 136 of those patients (49%) are registered in our P.R. Pediatric 

Hemophilia Program, presently operating at the Pediatric Hospital of the UPR 

Medical Sciences Campus, in Rio Piedras, P.R. 

That group of patients includes the following: 78 patients with hemophilia 

A; 8 with hemophilia B; 40 cases with Von Willebrand's disease; and 10 with 

other genetic coagulation disorders. Thus, practically all the Pediatric pa- 

tients with hemophilia, and about 50% of the total population of individuals 

with genetic bleeding disorders in P.R. are receiving comprehensive care at the 

presently existing Pediatric Hemophilia Treatment Center (HTC). This HTC has 

been operating during the last six (6) years, in a Program affiliated with the 
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Comprehensive Hemophilia Center of Mount Sinai Medical Center in New 

York. Our HTC is partially funded by the MCH Bureau of the US Depart- 

ment of Health and Human Services. 

Adult hemophilia patients receive health care in a less organized 

fashion in various health facilities on the Island. But the mayority 

of those with severe hemophilia and serious health problems receive 

health care at the Hematology Sections of the Departments of Medicine 

of the University Hospital (for adults) and of the San Juan City Hospital, 

in Rio Piedras, PR. Very few hemophilia patients receive health care in 

privates hospitals; and only a very small number of patients (7.72%) are 

covered by health insurance. 

Services Available Regarding HIV Infection 

A total of 87 out of 136 patients with hemophilia and related disor- 

ders (64%) were considered to be at risk of exposure to the human inmu- 

nodefificiency virus (HIV) in the period of 1978 to 1988. Out of those; 

79 (91%) have been tested for HIV antibodies; and 31 of them (39%) have 

been found to be positive, or HIV (+). The group of HIV (+) patients in- 

cluded 29 with hemophilia A; one with Von Willebrands disease; and 

other with factor V deficiency. Their ages (at the time of testing) 

ranged from five to 19 years; but most of them were over 10 years of age. 

Due to the fact that many patients had reached the age of 18 years, 

during the last five years we have transferred 25 of these patients to 

the (adults) Hematology Service of the University Hospital, including 

10 with HIV infection, Three of these patients have eventually died with 

AIDS. Thus, the Pediatric Hemophilia Program has kept and managed a total of 21 
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patients with HIV infection. Three of these patients (14%) have 

died with AIDS in the last 1 1/2 years. Thus, 18 HIV (+) patients 

in the pediatric age group are alive, and 2 now have the AIDS re- 

lated complex or AR CG. 

All our pediatric patients and also some young adults have re- 

ceived initial evaluation and continuous comprehensive care by well 

trained physicians and a well organized psychosocial support and HIV 

risk reduction group. That group is composed of a hemophilia nurse, 

a social worker, @ psychologist, a physical therapist, an oral hy- 

gienist, 4 general pediatrician, and a hematologist. 

Psychosocial support and HIV risk reduction services have been 

provided to che patients,to their parents, and to the ‘patients sexual partners 

in cases of sexually active young adults. 

All patients have been observed closely for signs of progression 

of HIV infection, including serial testing for immunoglobulins, CD4 

lymphocyte counts, and T,/Tg ratios. Those patients who qualify for 

AZT and TMP-SMZ therapy, according to recent national guidelines, are 

receiving that treatment. 

All school age children and adolescents who attend our HTC are 

going to school or college; and most of the few young adults who attend 

our clinic are working. 

I do not have first hand information on the health status of most 

adult hemophilia patients jn Puerto Rico. However, information gathered 

by the social worker working for the Hemophilia Outreach Program of the 

Hemophilia Foundation Local Chapter suggests that many adult patients 

have not received counseling and testing services for HIV infection. 

It seems that work in this area is needed to avoid unnecessary exposure 

-3- (¢  
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of the relatives and sexual partners of adult hemophilia patients to 

the HIV virus. 

III. Interaction with other agencies: 

The Pediatric Hemophilia Program interacts often with several 

agencies and programs in the community that offer services to other 

patients with HIV infection. Support by the Department of Health 

of Puerto Rico and the University Pediatric Hospital has been good to 

excellent. Collaboration with the Latin American Center for 

Sexually Transmitted Diseases has permitted us to obtain AZT re~ 

gularly for the treatment of HIV (+) hemophilia patients who 

qualify for use of that medication. Communication with the San 

Juan Vocational Rehabilitation Center has facilitated arrangements 

to provide vocational training and support to several of our adoles- 

cent and young adult hemophilia patients. Although our patients do 

not receive services from the Gamma Project, located at the University 

Pediatric Hospital, staff from both programs meet often to discuss 

patient problems and to make therapy plans. 

IV. Final Comments: 

Despite the unfortunate occurrence of HIV infection in many of our 

hemophilia patients, due to the use of contaminated blood products in 

the period 1978-1988, we have been successful in organizing a well 

coordinated team of health professionals that is providing appropriate 

health care and phsychosocial suport to our HIV infected pediatric 

patients and relatives. 

We feel confident that our successful experience in the management 

of hemophiliacs can be useful in the management of other HIV infected 

patients, including both pediatric and adult cases. (5 

          Jo 

Z edro J. 

Director, 

trago Borrer, hey 
Pediatric Heméphilia Program 
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HIY SEROPREVSLENCE IN NEWBORNS IN SAN JUAN AND NEARBY TOWNS 

moog. Santiaye-Borcvera, d. Rullan, M. Garcia & M. Gwinn. 

Gepartmenk of Pediatrics, U. P. OR, 

EL om. Department of Health and 

Centers fir Riesgsase Control (CDC), Atlanta, SA. 

cAbor boo giresemted at the UFR Medical Sciences Campus 

faimiwat Senaearch Forum, December &, 1°90) 

& vaerdable but very high percentage of H{iV infected 

aercons develop 4705 & to iw years after exposure to that 

mabe us. 

Qa and.cated in the CLO WMWR report of February 1990, 

5s Riah orevalence rate af AliDS has been +t eported li SOME 
gf 

  

large mtie= of cantinental USA and Fuerto Rica. The Gir 
= et 

“yt laces with Lhe highest prevalence rates are the 

Following: Washington DC, Puerto Rica, New Yor hy tteaw 

  
—— 

Jareey, Florida ard Californiagy with rates per each 109,000 

  

    

  

    
pear soa OF Bl. La 44.9, 33.5, 260.9. 27.9 and 22.7, 

resoe:Cively. Thus, FPuerto Fico appeared as the second 

Iinsgqhest am that ligt, with an infection rate of one case 

ner each 7,207 pe sons. 

The Fuerto Pico AIDS Surverllance Gvystem Report of 

{6  
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Noyenber L290 indicated that by that month 5.122 AIDS cases 

had hean renorted in the zsland, of which 7,248 or 63% had 

died. Tits. 1,874 AIDS patients %‘'27%) were ALiV® oan 

Nayamber.s. for & prevalence rate of 1gi,779 sersons in OR, 

Thiet 'sscenba sre uf HIV infection assuciated with adult and 

aniniescent recivivnts of blond praducts has cecreasec 

sognifarcantiy in the past few years. However, there has 

Peery oA S1gniFicant wnereane in the rate of perinatal 

fremenmiesion oot HIV in the past few years; a@lthauwah, “we 

still reoresents less than Th of all new AIDS cases reported 

am OF AR Anyway. this figure 18 almost twice the 

purcenteage an the LA. Amd that number corresponds also ta 

the hrahker rate oF 8ThS sn women on FOR. 

Meaponding to excating meeds to identify praseant trends 

ip othe pravadence mf HTY infection amorny pregnant wamen in 

rooectes Fic dy che Centers for Dasease Cantrot (CDC) and tne 

Department of Health of FR. nave been sponsaring a neonatal 

Ht! serooravalan:e survey during the last two years. 

Newloa a Llood samples oabtained from heel punctures, 

aultlected oar: the filter papers used for neonatal screening 

for hypothyrswidisea, FRU and hemolobinopathies were utilized 

"oe anonymons testing for HIV antibodies. Filter paper 

Lies tonteininy dried blood samples were cuk and placed am 

wells wf aporoapriale trays, and the perkinent demographic 

r 
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data ware recorded ima comuiter. preserving the anonymity of 

infents ard mothers, and of individual hospitals. Tes=s 

Sor the peeseance tah HL antibodies wee performed on the 

seri specimens sluted from the filter paper discs ana CNC 

spansared Leboratory, weing a modified ELISA method. 

Moubful and pocitive cases were re-tested by the Western 

Riet technique. A rigorous quality control system designed 

ry (OTM baa meditiained throughoul the survey. 

Samples obtained frem iantants barn at the University 

Hingnoibel, the Fan Juan Caty and the Carolina Area Hosoitals 

aera placed togel her antl identified as group cede Ol. 

S.mgles fram Uke Gaguas and the Beyamon Regional hospitals 

pears aderntitiad os group code J. The blood samples 

omterned om prrvale hospitals c# San Juan and Esyanon were 

tactuded oy group cade ON (sew table 1). 

Cle tesults of the survey conducted between January 

399 ancl Tune L¢9O are the subsect of this presentation. 

Fartici:peataim hospitals entered the study in = phases ét 

Cigierents datea, as aundicaled in this table. Hy December 

1999, abort PO% cof al] neonetes borm monthly in hospitedl 

jraup Ol and OD were beang lested far HIV; and by June L99O 

about 85% af infants barn an private hospitals in Sen Juan 

ane} Hayarnn were being teeted. A total of 19,721 newborns 

binod ganples were tested during the farst 18 months of this 
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SLIP VEDY « 

The preva.emmee rate af HIV antibodies among 10,985 

neonates tarn ain hospilal group OL wae 14.9 per 1,00 

te¢danks. The rele anoang 6,319 eanples beloarging to hospital 

wremug we aes 9. 7 per 2b, OOO. And the corresponding fiqure 

acy 2-479 blac! gamples taken from nmneonales born in 

rravate hospitals (cade OF) was 0.8 per 1,000. The over all 

preses}ence rate was 11.5 per 1,000, and that for infants 

bora ooh ine Leo groups G4 mublic hospitals was 12.23 per 

I]>. J,000 fsgoe tab] ) 

Tatil TIL sndwcates Ehat the Largest mumber of positive 

Cases oaciur:+ ed in the age graup tO to 29 years. 

NST TOM 

Thais report has significant amportance for the study of 

HIV aefectian on Feerto Rica in 2 differant ways. First, 

because ot tie meéthadolagy useds and secandly, cde ta the 

resulks osbrained up la now. 

The bteennwloagy employeed for large scale neonatal 

Teekiung Feu several genetLic diseases has improved 

seanificantiy em the last two decades, using small amounts 

of til wer enecimens callected onto f1] her papers, In 
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'937-O, the then existing ELISA HIV antibody test was 

modified ots test reliably very sami] amounts of serum 

eluted from deried blood suiples collected on filter napers. 

Inmedietaly at became apparent ‘that large numbers af blood 

suerinais Collected reguiarly far n@arnatal screaning for 

uy aed re ci: t th
 eayee were evallable for FIV testing. Frampitly, 

coc became  iomcerested oir using that technique im the 

euryvarblare & fame HIY an¢tection among pregnant women. In a 

short time CDC javeloped sragrams tor neonatal testing far 

HTY anriboc se in vittes wilh a4 high prevalence rates of wiv 

rafee tiom, sind: as the Sar dirare Metropolitan Area. 

Thier qgathalopy sed has praven toa be reliable, 

paper din. Le. ane cost efiectives when performed in 

coQardinalyon nabs alr eady ex sting neonatal qenetir: 

SPeoni.g peoayrane, like the one operatina im Puerto Rico 

rye. 

The «mouths chtained so +ar 21n Puerto Rica indicate 

Frat the aresanc: of HIV antibodies in neonates born in 

tae groups 3+ pubtic hosoitals is exzhreamely hmaighs this 15. 
——— 

  

mer 
“= - ages amandy i7,272 samples Lested, or, 12.35 per 1,006. 

This means Leak tierce 15 ane oasitive <case per each &1.% 
———   

rnfants arn im those public hospitals. Furthermore, the 

Se a 

paridence on the 2orain publis hospitals in San Juan 1 @van 

  

higher: 1.@e, te4i newborns. As these aonfants are expected 
hee 

= = = 
  

    = ——— 

hee @:pased ta HIV transplacentally, at least the 
to hav Ti 
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same oravalence rate Of HIV infection 

theivy raohhers. 

OW: tne basis oF tnfor mation 

aulher s. TU lo S5% of anfents born to 

HIV. devalico HIV infection 

fected ian¢fants 

renee 

an Fat hase '7, tmfanks tested 

4. 
hes Dwogsgitble ta preadiat the 

wy one egnack wamer wa the 

eye weetet to determine the 
= 

fs & goiter cities and towns 

thal the arevalence rate 

ta the other 

rtland. we could expect St& 

abouk tS8 neonates 

re 
arma biv. oF tLehaek tes SO, Wwe 

mm Puerto Rico mow. 

THUG » an ourgen 

study ta the entire ser morev alr 

clarify ise present siluatior. 

arid bether polanned agar 2sive 

MeAISUeeSes are urgently aseded 

opaidamics HIV iuntectian in the co 
eal 

4 

transplacantally. 

are expected to have 

in the 

prevalence cate of 

cest of the rsland. 

prevalence 

of FPuerecto Ricca. 

cekected 

infants 

actually infected 

ilo have 

mst he accurring ain 

published by séveral 

mothers infected with 

Thus, about 48 

been delivered among 

last 17 months. Tk 2-5 

HIV infection 

Further studies 

rate reliabiy ain 

However, if we assume 

im the samples already 

public hospitais on the 

exposed to HIV, and 

cA by that rebroavirus 

o 4 very serious uroablem 

t need ta npand this 

island of Fuerto Rica, to 

And 1t seems that more 

education and preventive 

to coantreal the presearnt. 

San Juan Area. 
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A newborn HIV Seroprevalence Study has been conduct- 
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( poster presentation screening for hypothyroidism and phenylketonuria 
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TABLE Tf 

DATE OF ENTRY AND HOSPITAL GROUP CODE IN NEONATAL 

HIV SEROPREVALENCE STUDY 
    

  

PHASE HOSPITALS CODE ENTRY NUM. PERCENT 

NUM. __ DATE CASES 

UNIVERSITY HOSP. Jan~Feb. 

i SAN JUAN CITY HOSP. 01 1989 10,983 55.7% 

CAROLINA AREA HOSP. 

  

  

i BAYAMON REG. HOSP. 02 Aug-Oct. 6,310 32.0% 

CAGUAS RES. HOSP. 1989 

PRIVATE SAN JUAN HOSP'S. 03  Feb-April 2,428 12.3% 

III PRIVATE BAYAMON HOSP'S. 1990 

  
  

TOTAL 19,721 100% 
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TABLE Il 

NEWBORNS HIV SEROPREVALENCE RATE IN SAMPLES FROM 

VARLOUS HOSPITAL GROUPS IN 1989 AND 1990 

  

  

  
  

NUM. CASES CASES RATE PER 

HOSPITALS GP TESTED POSITIVE THOUSAND 

01 10,983 164 14.9 

~ 12.3 

02 6,310 61 9.7 

03 2,428 2 0.8 

TOTAL 19,721 227 11.5 
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TABLE III 

NEWBORNS HIV SEROPREVALENCE RATE BY MATERNAL AGE GROUP 
AND HOSPITAL GROUPS; 1989 & 1990 

| HOSPITAL GROUPS (PHASES) 

AGE GROUP (YRS.) OL 02 03 

UNDET'd (20) 1.8 (18) 2.9 0 

< 15 C1) 0.1 (0) 0 0 

15-19 (19) 1.7 (7) 1.1 0 

20-24 (54) 4.9 (20) 3.2 (1) 0.4 

25-29 (45) 4.1 (9) 1.4 0 

30-34 (16) 1.5 (6) 1.0 (1) 0.4 

35~39 (8) 0.7 (1) 0.2 0 

40-44 (1) 0.1 (0) 0 0 

€45 (0) 0 (0) 0 0 

TOTAL (164) 14.9 (61) 9.7 (2) 0.8         
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UNIVERSIDAD DE PUERTO AICO 
Facultad oe Ciencias Saciales 

Apariade 23345 
San Juan. PA 90931-3345 

  

sPAMOMENT EC GE SOCIOL iste YAN Tl rOL GEA 

December 5, 1990 

Ms. Maureen Byrnes 

Executive Director 
NATIONAL COMIMISSION ON 

ACQUIRED IMMUNE DEFICIENCY SYNDROME 

1730 K Street, N.W., Suite 815 

Washington, D.C. 20006 

Dear Ms. Byrnes: 

Attached please find the testimony which I had prepared to 

give te the National Commission on Acquired Immune Deficiency 

Syndrome last week. I appreciate that you allow me to send it to 

you at this date, since I would like for this to be part of the 

testimony from Puerto Rico. I would be thankful if a copy of 

the testimony could be previded to each member of the Commission. 

It was a pleasure to work with the Commission. I trust that 

the materials sent to you at the request of members of your staff 

wore cf help to the Commission. The local quilts added a special 

atmosphere to the hearings. 

Coydially, 

pater (resemcraesbaner 

neke Cunningham 
rofessor of Sociology 
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REMARKS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE NATIONAL AIDS COMMISSION AT THE 
HEARINGS IN SAN JUAN, PUERTO RICO, NOVEMBER 28, 1990 

Ineke Cunningham 
Professor of Sociology, University of Puerto Rico” 

President of MOSAICO de NOMBRES 

Introduction 

For the past three years I have worked as an investigator in 

two distinct projects, about which I would like to comment. This 

last year I have also presided over MOSAICO de NOMBRES, a non- 

profit organization which unites some twenty organizations, and 

which brought the QUILT of the NAMES PROJECT to Puerto Rico. 

Results of Surveys on AIDS Knowledge and Risk Behavior 

In two large surveys of 2,000 and 4,000 students at the 

University of Puerto Rico, we have found that aithough over 95% 

ef the students know that the use of condoms decreases the risk 

of transmission of HIV, only 11 per cent of those sexually active 

indicate they always use condoms, and over 40% never use them. 

Over 30% of women and close to 40% of men who are sexually active 

indicate they have engaged in anal sex. The reasons given for 

this practice suggest that the decision to engage in anal sex is 

usually made by men, and women accede for their partners’ 

pleasure. 

Whereaf most etudents do not consume alcohol every day, they 

fFrequentiy take three or more drinks when they do sc. We found 

highly significant relationships between alcohol use and risk 

behavior, and feel that it is important to further study this 
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link. 

If these findings hold true for a middle and working class 

university population, what percentage of other sectors engage in 

these types of risk behavior? Most students indicate they have 

little actual knowledge as to how to protect themselves, yet 70% 

wish to have access to courses on sexuality and AIDS, and 90% of 

the students would like to see an office with a professional 

counselor on campus. 

I believe we cannot neglect to answer their needs. We need 

to provide education to prevent the transmission of HIV. If the 

University should decide not to support such a project, those who 

comprise the university--students and professors--should shoulder 

the task. This education should include specific skills as to 

how to use condoms as well as how to communicate with sexual 

partners. In addition we need to work with both attitudes and 

fears. 

I applaud the money dedicated to biomedical research, but 

for prevention we need to know what risk behavior persons of 

different sectors are engaging in. The virus is the same in the 

Netherlands, China and Puerto Rico, but the social and economic 

conditions and the cultural practices between and within these 

societies vary greatly. The relationship between these factors 

and risk behavior have not been studied sufficiently in many 

societies. The cost of such research need not be great. We did 

our two studies with student help for less than $30,000. 

However, if we are to establish priorities and better “me (2 

3, 1 
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programs, we need to know more about the reasons for engaging in 

risk behavior. Therefore, in addition to sorely needed funds for 

treatment, we need more funds for research in the ‘social 

sciences. 

The Positions of the Political Parties and the Church 

  

eae scce 

As a people, we have been manipulated. AIDS has for tco 

  

long been too much of a political issue here. We have analyzed 

oe 

AIDS reporting in the local press since 1981. From 1984 to 1987 

re . 

there were public controversies between both health care 

ee, 

  

professionals and ether officials of different political parties 

over such issues as incidence figures and the promotion of condom 

use. In September, 1987, we almost lost cur federal funding 

because San Juan and the Commonwealth Government could not work 

together on AIDS priorioties and planning. From these hearings 

so far it is clear that serious differences still cxist. 

While some sectors of the churches have accepted the 

responsibility of loving and caring, we should not ‘forget that. 

others continue to mention the wrath of God, and the Cardenal 

has been qucted in the press a5 saying that using a condom is 

worse than having AIDS. Our present governor opposed the use of 

condoms for AIDS prevention until March, 1989. 

You have become aware in these hearings that we are sitting 

on a powder keg. The needs are great, the funds are limited and 

there are serious problems between both the public and the 3l 

private sectors as to how to work together. We agree with Eunice  
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Diaz, who eloquently expressed that we need to fight the HIV 

virus and not each other. 

We must learn to work together with respect and 

determination. For it is only with a united front, organizing at 

the grassroots, if you will, and including persons with HIV, 

organizations that provide services to PWAs and their family 

members, other community organizations, agencies, universities 

and churches that we stand a chance in the fight against AIDS. 

Only then we will be able to plan more rationally, educate 

better, and provide more humane services at lower costs. All 

these activities should be directed to enpower people to have a 

greater voice in the destinies of their own lives with respect to 

AIDS. 

MOSAICO de NOMBRES 

Last August 27~29 the QUILT of the NAMES PROJECT of San 

Francisco was exhibited here in San Juan. Over twenty 

organizations worked together in making this possible. We gave 

workshops, more than 200 individual quilts were made here on the 

island, hundreds of volunteers gave their time, and thousands of 

people came to see the QUILT. 

At present the Puerto Rican Quilt is traveling through the 

Island, giving other communities a chance to experience it. No 

individual organization can request a display, for the 

3.3 

prerequisite for its exhibition is that local organizations for xy 
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a committee which makes the request. We hope that thus people 

will learn to knew.one another, and work shoulder to shoulder on 

a concrete event. On March 1, 1991 the Puerto Rican QUILT will 

join the other quilts in San Francisco, yet I believe MOSAICO de 

NOMBRES will continue to exist. The next few months we will 

conjointiy work on an agenda of tasks that can be realized and 

done together. 

Although many said it could not be done.....-it was done! In 

a society that has a colonial heritage, where dependence has been 

created both through the Welfare State and through a government 

that frequently is patriarchal and slow in planning, we asa 

people need to learn to work together and we should be made to do 

so, for it is our only salvation in the struggle against AIDS. 

The Comission requested some local quiits from the NAMES 

PROJECT, who referred you to MOSAICO de NOMBRES. On these walls, 

therefore, we see some of the memories of pain and love that 

families and friends of those who died have left for history. 

MOSATCO de NOMBRES......Let us keep love alive, plan and work 

together for the day when we need not make any more quilts. 

  

 


